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09/03/2015   MCWD Special Board Meeting 

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT 
Post Office Box 597 

Mammoth Lakes, California 93546-0597 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the President of the Board of Directors of the Mammoth Community 
Water District has called a SPECIAL MEETING to be held THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 3, 2015 at 8:30 
A.M.

Please Note: 
Members of the public will have the opportunity to directly address the District Board of Directors 

concerning any item listed on the Agenda below before or during consideration of that item. 

AGENDA 

8:30 A.M. 

A. Roll Call

Directors Cage, Domaille, Henderson, and Smith 

B. Current Business

B-1   Presentation, Discussion and Filing of the 2014-2015 Financial Audit
• Richard Teaman, CPA, Teaman, Ramirez & Smith

B-2   Ratification of the Third Amendment to the Agreement between MCWD and the Snowcreek
Investment Company Concerning Recycled Water Service

B-3   Discussion and Possible Adoption of Urgency Ordinance No. 09-03-15-14 Amending Conservation
Level Provisions of Division XII of Chapter 12 of the District’s Water Code regarding Water Shortage
Conditions, Water Conservation Measures, and Enforcement.

B-4   Discussion and Consideration of Motion Conforming District Remaining at Level 3 Water Supply
Shortage , With Changes Enacted by Ordinance No. 09-03-15-14
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B-5   Discussion and Direction Regarding Filling a Board Vacancy 
 
 
C.  Adjournment 
 
 
 
The meeting will be held in the conference room at the District facility located one mile east of Old 
Mammoth Road on Meridian Boulevard, just off Highway 203, Mammoth Lakes, California. 
 
 
 

               
         

PATRICK A. HAYES                                                                                       
General Manager 

 
 
Date of Issuance:  Wednesday, September 2, 2015 
 
 
 
 
Posted: MCWD Office 
  MCWD Website:  www.mcwd.dst.ca.us 
        cc:   Members, Board of Directors 
               Town of Mammoth Lakes 
               KMMT, KIBS, KSRW Radio 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need a disability related modification or 
accommodation to participate in this meeting please call Stephanie Hake at (760) 934-2596 at least one full 
day before the meeting. 
 
Documents and material relating to an open session agenda item that are provided to the Mammoth 
Community Water District Board of Directors less than 72 hours prior to a regular meeting will be available 
for public inspection and copying at the District facility located at 1315 Meridian Boulevard, Mammoth 
Lakes, California. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Mammoth Community Water District 
Mammoth Lakes, California 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of Mammoth Community Water District (the “District”) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2015, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table 
of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the District’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position 
of the business-type activities and the aggregate remaining fund information of the District, as of March 31, 2015, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and analysis 
on pages iii to viii be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We 
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing 
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
District’s basic financial statements.  The combining schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements.   
 
The combining schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the combing schedules are fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated ________ __, 2015, on our 
consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
 
Riverside, California 
_________ __, 2015 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 
 
As management of the Mammoth Community Water District (the District), we offer readers of the District’s financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the fiscal year ended March 31, 
2015. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
 The assets of the District exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal 

year by $86,483,278 (net position). Of this amount, $14,042,319 (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the 
District’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

 The total net position increased by $270,815. This increase is attributable largely to reducing liabilities by additional 
principal payments on debt. 

 Capital Assets, net of accumulated depreciation decreased by $120,395. This decrease of .2% indicates the District’s 
investment in new assets is slightly less than the depreciation of existing assets.  Significant additions to District assets 
include replacement of aging water and sewer lines and upgrades to the wastewater treatment plant.  

 Construction in progress totals $2,963,247.  Major projects include the Master Meter/Metering Equipment, 
improvements to Well #1, and improvements to the Vehicle Storage building. 

 The District’s total debt was $2,016,784 of which $1,207,910 is due within the next year.  
 Cash and investments had a net decrease of $76,906. This net decrease was a result of cash expenditures on expenses, 

capital projects, and debt principal reduction that exceeded cash inflows. 
 Operating Revenue declined from the prior year by $190,911 as a result of successful water conservation efforts by the 

District and community during this extended drought. Property taxes increased from the prior year by $343,768 due to a 
slight increase in assessed valuation and collection by Mono County. Operating Expenses, including Depreciation and 
Amortization increased over prior year by $506,383 as a result of increased legal and outside services related to the 
defense of the District’s water supply and increased depreciation expense on the District’s infrastructure.   

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial statements, which are 
comprised of the following: 1) Statement of Net Position, 2) Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, 
3) Statement of Cash Flows, 4) Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities and 5) Notes to the Financial Statements. This 
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the District’s assets and liabilities, and deferred inflows/outflows 
of resources, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may 
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information showing how the District’s net 
position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in 
this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but 
unused vacation leave). 
 
The Statement of Cash Flows presents information on cash receipts and payments for the fiscal year.  
 
The Statement of Fiduciary Assets account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary 
funds are not reflected in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the District’s own program. The accounting used for 
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. 
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The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data 
supplied in the each of the specific financial statements listed above.  The Notes to the Financial Statements can be found 
pages 6-18 of this report. 
 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain supplementary 
information of the District’s Water, Wastewater and New Enterprise activities. 
 
Financial Analysis 
 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a District’s financial position. In the case of the 
District, assets exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $86,483,278 at the close of the most recent fiscal 
year. 
 
By far the largest portion of the District’s net position (84 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, 
buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.  The District 
uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. 
Although the District’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources 
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate 
these liabilities. 
 
The remaining balance of unrestricted net position ($14,042,319) may be used to meet the District’s ongoing obligations to 
citizens and creditors. The following table shows the projected capital project expenditures for the next five years: 
 
 Fiscal Year(s): 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 
 Projected Capital Costs: $5,175,623 $5,357,725 $3,183,088 $4,016,138 4,410,000 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the District is able to report positive balances in all categories of net position.  The same 
situation held true for the prior fiscal year. 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the District is able to report a positive balance in net position.  
 

Net Position 
 

   2015     2014  
    
Current and Other Assets $ 17,088,502  $ 17,238,890 
Capital Assets  73,446,949   73,567,343 
   
  Total Assets $ 90,535,451  $ 90,806,233 
   
Noncurrent Liabilities $ 808,874  $ 2,237,837 
Other Liabilities  2,116,863   1,223,320 
   
  Total Liabilities $ 2,925,737  $ 3,461,157 
   
Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 1,126,436 $ 1,132,613 
   
Net Position:   
 Net Investment in  
  Capital Assets 

 
$ 72,440,959 

  
$ 71,914,488 

 Unrestricted  14,042,319   14,297,975 
    
  Total Net Position $ 86,483,278  $ 86,212,463 
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 Unrestricted net position at the end of the year amounted to $14,042,319.  The total decrease from prior year was 
$255,656.  This decrease is attributable mostly to the District spending more on capital projects than the District’s 
cash inflows. 

 Cash and investments decreased approximately $76,906 from prior year while net capital assets decreased 
approximately $120,394.   

 Principal payments of $772,865 decreased long-term debt. 
 

Change in Net Position 
 

   2015    2014  
    
Revenues:    
 Water Services $ 3,081,224  $ 3,388,538 
 Wastewater Services  2,644,471   2,607,873 
 Permits  184,619   104,814 
 Non-Operating  6,867,665   6,614,831 
    
 Total Revenues   12,777,979    12,716,056 
  
Expenses:    
 Operating:    
 General and Administrative  3,169,176   3,199,226 
 Water Services 3,332,264 3,030,453 
 Wastewater Services 1,485,979 1,440,970 
 Depreciation and Amortization 4,460,494 4,270,881 
 Non-Operating   59,251    3,528,800 
    
 Total Expenses   12,507,164    15,470,330 
  
Change in Net Position  270,815   (2,754,274) 
    
Net Position, Beginning   86,212,463    88,966,737 
    
Net Position, Ending $ 86,483,278  $ 86,212,463 

 
 
 The District last implemented new rates for water and wastewater services in 2012, with scheduled incremental 

increases through April 2016.  The District is currently engaged in a study of water and wastewater service rates and 
connection fees.  This study is intended to affirm the adequacy of rates and fees to meet the operating and capital 
needs of the District, and achieve revenue neutrality during periods of drought and water conservation. 

 The slight increase in net position (.3% from fiscal year 2014 to 2015) is due to the net of decreases to operating 
revenue, increases to non-operating revenue, increases to operating expense and decreases to non-operating 
expenses. 
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District Activities: The District’s Wastewater, Water and New Enterprise activities are as follows. 
 
 

Expenses and Program Revenues 
 

 
 

 

Revenues by Source  
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital Assets: The District’s capital assets for its business type activities as of March 31, 2015, amounts to $73,446,948 
(net of accumulated depreciation).  This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and system, improvements, 
machinery and equipment.  Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in Note 3 of the Notes to 
Financial Statements. 
 
Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 
 
 The District spent over $4,422,951 on capital projects in fiscal year 2015.  Completed projects include: VFD retrofit to 

the WWTP blowers, Water and Sewer line scheduled replacements, improvements to the WWTP grinder, upgrades to 
the vehicle storage building, and software system upgrades. 

 Projects still in progress at the end of fiscal year 2015 include the advanced metering infrastructure, facility and hydrant 
relocation, and improvements to Well #1 to meet increased water quality requirements. 
 

Mammoth Community Water District’s Capital Assets 
(Net of Depreciation) 

 
   2015   2014  
   
 Land $ 312,000 $ 312,000 
 Construction in Progress  2,963,247  391,491 
 Subsurface Lines  33,429,980  32,400,766 
 General Plant Administration Facilities  11,983,402  11,884,022 
 Water Treatment Facilities  29,230,398  30,362,012 
 Collection Facilities  43,993,718  43,443,072 
 Wastewater Treatment Facilities  1,498,978  1,498,978 
 Source of Supply  4,871,806  4,871,806 
 Vehicles and Equipment  3,942,540  3,770,585 
   
  Total Capital Assets    132,226,069   128,934,732 
   
  Less Accumulated Depreciation   (58,779,121)   (55,367,389) 
   
 Total Capital Assets, Net $ 73,446,948 $ 73,567,343 

 
Long-term Debt: At the end of the current fiscal year, the District had total debt outstanding of $2,016,784.  Additional 
information on the District’s long-term debt can be found in Note 4 of the Notes to Financial Statements. 
 

Mammoth Community Water District’s Outstanding Debt 
 

   2015    2014  
   
 Bonds Payable $ $ 45,000 
 Notes Payable 1,307,590 2,035,455 
 Compensated Absences   709,194   693,284 

  Long-term Liabilities $ 2,016,784 $ 2,773,739 

The decrease in long-term debt is because of principal payments of $772,865 on Bonds Payable and Notes Payable.  The 
remaining difference is the increase in compensated absences of $15,910. 
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
 
The extended drought in California places downward pressure on revenue as our customers conserve water and upward 
pressure on the cost of producing water.  Gravity works against us as more water is pumped out of the ground as opposed to 
flowing down from Lake Mary.  Groundwater treatment costs increase as a result of higher mineral content of groundwater. 
 
Property valuation and related tax revenue is recovering slowly from the extended economic recession.  New housing 
development generating connection fee revenue for future infrastructure is also recovering slowly.  The District has projected 
revenue conservatively and considered rising costs in the preparation of the Mammoth Community Water District’s budget 
for the 2016 fiscal year. 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Mammoth Community Water District’s finances for all 
those with an interest in the government’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or 
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance Department Manager, P.O. Box 597, 
Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546. 
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ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,335,570$        
Investments 5,607,670          
Receivables:

Billings 383,915             
Interest 16,801               
Property Taxes 2,049,147          
Loans 1,202,642          
Other 66,178               

Inventory 230,166             
Deposits and Prepaid Expenses 196,413             

Total Current Assets 17,088,502        

Land and Construction in Progress, Not Being Depreciated 3,275,247          
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 70,171,702        

Total Assets 90,535,451        

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 448,728             
Accrued Expenses 344,967             
Retentions Payable 74,761               
Deposits Payable 35,242               
Accrued Interest Payable 5,255                 
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 1,207,910          

Total Current Liabilities 2,116,863          

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Long-Term Debt:

Notes Payable 170,600             
Compensated Absences 638,274             

Total Liabilities 2,925,737          

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Property Taxes 1,126,436          

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,126,436          
 
NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 72,440,959        
Unrestricted 14,042,319        

Total Net Position 86,483,278$     

Mammoth Community Water District
Statement of Net Position

March 31, 2015

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
1
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OPERATING REVENUES
Water Services 3,081,224$       
Wastewater Services 2,644,471         
Permits 184,619            

Total Operating Revenues 5,910,314         

OPERATING EXPENSES
General and Administrative 3,169,176         
Water Services 3,332,264         
Wastewater Services 1,485,979         
Depreciation and Amortization 4,460,494         

Total Operating Expenses 12,447,913       

Operating Income (Loss) (6,537,599)        

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Property Taxes 6,213,416         
SCE Energy Credits 602,930            
Investment Earnings 173,716            
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets (196,105)           
Other Revenues 73,708              
Interest Expenses (59,186)             
Other Expenses (65)                    

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 6,808,414         

Change in Net Position 270,815            

Net Position - Beginning 86,212,463       

Net Position - Ending 86,483,278$    

Mammoth Community Water District
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended March 31, 2015

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
2

 

DRAFT COPY – 08/31/2015 
PRELIMINARY & TENTATIVE 

for DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY 
 

 



CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Receipts from Customers 5,899,327$      
Payments to Suppliers (3,240,881)       
Payments to Employees (4,512,149)       
Other Revenues 826,039           
Other Expenses (65)                   

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities (1,027,729)       

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Property Taxes 6,164,279        

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capital
Financing Activities 6,164,279        

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquistion & Construction of Capital Assets (4,575,984)       
Proceeds from the Sale of Assets 39,779             
Principal Payments on Long-term Debt (772,865)          
Interest Paid (61,650)            

Net Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Capital 
and Related Financing Activities (5,370,720)       

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Investments (6,335,091)       
Proceeds from the Sale and Maturities of Investments 6,239,342        
Interest Received 256,739           

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 160,990           

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and
Cash Equivalents (73,180)            

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 7,408,750        

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year 7,335,570$      

Mammoth Community Water District
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year Ended March 31, 2015

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
3
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RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME 
(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Operating Income (Loss) (6,537,599)$     
Depreciation and Amortization 4,460,494     
Other Revenues 826,039        
Other Expenses (65)                

Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in Operating Assets:

Account Receivable (21,912)            
Inventory (6,340)              
Deposits and Prepaid Expenses 11,747             

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 83,772             
Accrued Expenses 59,531             
Retentions Payable 74,761             
Deposits Payable 5,935               
Compensated Absences 15,908             

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (1,027,729)$    

Mammoth Community Water District
Statement of Cash Flows - Continued

Year Ended March 31, 2015

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
4
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Agency
Funds

ASSETS
Cash and Investments 20,000$         
Cash and Investments with Fiscal Agent 1                    

Total Assets 20,001$        

LIABILITIES
Deposits Payable 20,001$         

Total Liabilities 20,001$        

Mammoth Community Water District
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

March 31, 2015
Agency Funds

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
5
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Year Ended March 31, 2015 
 

7 

 
 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

A) Reporting Entity 
 

The Mammoth Community Water District (District) was organized in 1957, for the purpose of providing water 
distribution services as well as wastewater collection and treatment facilities for the residents and businesses of the 
Mammoth Lakes area.  The District’s name was Mammoth County Water District and was changed by the Board of 
Directors (Board) in January 1995, to Mammoth Community Water District. 

 
  The District’s basic financial statements include the operations of all organizations for which the District Board of 

Directors exercises oversight responsibility.  Oversight responsibility is demonstrated by financial interdependency, 
selection of governing authority, designation of management, ability to significantly influence operations, and 
accountability for fiscal matters. 

 
  No operations of other entities met the aforementioned oversight criteria for inclusion or exclusion from the 

accompanying basic financial statements in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statement No. 14, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39. 

 
  The basic financial statements include the activities of the New Enterprise Division (expansion and other activities), the 

Water Division (water distribution services), and the Wastewater Division (wastewater collection and treatment 
facilities).  The activities for each division are reflected in the combining schedules. 

 
 B) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 
 
  The District’s basic financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 

the United States of America.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board is the accepted standard setting 
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting standards followed by governmental entities 
in the United States of America.  

 
The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and 
expenses are recognized in the period incurred, regardless of the timing of cash flows. 
 
Additionally the District reports the following fund type: 
 

The Agency Funds are used to account for special assessments collected to make principal and interest payments 
for the 2004-1 Reassessment District and for activities related to the Trout Habitat Enhancement Program.  The 
District has no obligation for the 2004-1 Reassessment District bond other than in a fiduciary capacity. 

 
  Net position is displayed as three components:  (1) Net investment in capital assets, which reflects the cost of capital 

assets less accumulated depreciation and less the outstanding principle of related debt not associated with unspent 
bond proceeds; (2) Restricted, which reflect the carrying value of assets less related liabilities that are restricted by 
outside covenants or by law; and (3) Unrestricted, which represents the remaining net assets. 
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 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 
 B) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation - Continued 

 
The District distinguished operating revenues and expenses from those revenues and expenses that are non-
operating.  Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated by water sales and wastewater services while 
operating expenses pertain directly to the furnishing of those services.  Non-operating revenues and expenses are 
those revenues and expenses generated that are not directly associated with the normal business of supplying water 
and wastewater treatment services. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

 
 C) Budget and Budgeting 
 
  Budget integration is employed as a management control device.  Budgets are formally adopted by the Board of 

Directors and take effect the following April 1.  The budgets are used as a management tool and are not a legal 
requirement.  

 
 D) Cash Equivalents 
 
  For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid investment instruments 

purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 
 
 E) Capital Assets 
 
  Purchased capital assets are stated at historical cost or estimated historical cost when original cost is not available.  

Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.  Capital assets purchased of at 
least $5,000 are capitalized if they have an expected useful life of 5 years or more.  Depreciation is calculated using the 
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

 
 Capital Assets    Years  
   
Plant and Pipelines  30-60 
Equipment  3-5 

 
F) Inventory 

 
Inventories of supplies and expendable equipment are stated at the lower of cost or market.  Cost is determined on a 
first-in, first-out basis. 

 
 G) Compensated Absences 
 

All earned vacation and accumulated sick leave payable upon termination or retirement are accrued as compensated 
absences.  A liability is accrued for a portion of the sick leave balances of all employees who are currently eligible to 
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 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 
 G) Compensated Absences - Continued 
 
  receive a payment for sick leave upon termination, as well as for those expected to become eligible.  As of March 31, 

2015, the total estimated liability for all compensated absences was $709,194. 
 
 H) Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
 In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of 

resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net 
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expenses/expenditure) until then.  Currently, the District has no items that qualify for this category. 

 
  In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows 

of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net 
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that 
time.  The District has only one type of item that qualifies for reporting in this category.  The deferred property taxes are 
related to property taxes receivables.  The District will receive the second installment of property taxes from the County 
that relate to the period of January to June subsequent to year end.  Only have of those property taxes relate to the 
current year and the other half is deferred to be recognized in the following year.  

 
 I) Property Taxes 
 
  The County of Mono (County) is responsible for the assessment, collection, and apportionment of property taxes for the 

District.  
 

  Property taxes in the State of California are administered for all local agencies at the county level, and consist of 
secured, unsecured, and utility tax rolls.  The following is a summary of major policies and practices relating to property 
taxes: 

 
 Property Valuations - are established by the Assessor of the County of Mono for the secured and unsecured 

property tax rolls; the utility property tax roll is valued by the State Board of Equalization.  Under the provisions of 
Article XIIIA of the State of California (Proposition 13 adopted by the votes on September 6, 1978) properties are 
assessed at 100% of full value.  From this base of assessment, subsequent annual increases in valuation are limited 
to a maximum of 2%.  However, increases to full value are allowed for property improvements or upon change in 
ownership.  Personal property is excluded from these limitations, and is subject to annual reappraisal. 

 
 Tax Levies - are limited to 1% of full value which results in a tax rate of $1 per $100 assessed valuation, under the 

provisions of Proposition 13.  Tax rates for voter-approved indebtedness are excluded from this limitation. 
 
 Tax Levy Dates - are attached annually on January 1 preceding the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.  The 

fiscal year begins July 1 and ends June 30 of the following year.  Taxes are levied on both real and unsecured         
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 1) REPORTING ENTITY SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 
  I) Property Taxes - Continued 
 

 personal property as it exists at that time.  Liens against real estate, as well as the tax on personal property, are not 
relieved by subsequent renewal or change in ownership. 

 
Tax Collections - are the responsibility of the county tax collector.  Taxes and assessments on secured and utility 
rolls which constitute a lien against the property, may be paid in two installments:  The first is due on November 1 
of the fiscal year and is delinquent if not paid by December 10; and the second is due on March 1 of the fiscal year 
and is delinquent if not paid by April 10.  Unsecured personal property taxes does not constitute a lien against real 
property unless the taxes become delinquent.  Payment must be made in one installment, which is delinquent if not 
paid by August 31 of the fiscal year.  Significant penalties are imposed by the County for late payments. 

 
Tax Levy Apportionments - Due to the nature of the District-wide maximum levy, it is not possible to identify 
general purpose tax rates for specific entities.  Under state legislation adopted subsequent to the passage of 
Proposition 13, apportionments to local agencies are made by the County Auditor-Controller based primarily on 
the ratio that each agency represented of the total District-wide levy for the three years prior to fiscal year 1979. 

 
Property Tax Administration Fees - The State of California FY 90-91 Budget Act authorized counties to collect an 
administrative fee for collection and distribution of property taxes.  Property taxes are recorded net of 
administrative fees withheld during the fiscal year. 

 
  Property tax revenues are recognized when they are apportioned. 
 
 J) Use of Estimates 
 
  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 

of America, as prescribed by the GASB and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
 
2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
 The primary goals of the District’s investment policy are to assure compliance with all Federal, State, and Local laws 

governing the investment of funds under the control of the organization, protect the principal of investments entrusted, and 
generate income under the parameters of such policies. 
 
The District’s investment policy and State statutes authorize the District to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, 
agencies and instrumentalities, prime commercial paper, banker acceptances, repurchase agreements, and negotiable 
certificates of deposits.  Funds may also be invested in the State Treasurer’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). 
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 2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued 
 
 Cash and Investments are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows: 
 

Statement of Net Position:  
 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 7,335,570 
 Investments  5,607,670 
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities:  
 Cash and Investments  20,000 
 Cash and Investments with Fiscal Agent  1 
  
 Total Cash and Investments $ 12,963,241 

 
 Cash and investments consist of the following:  
 

Cash on Hand $ 200 
Deposits with Financial Institutions  3,588,673 
Investments  9,374,368 
  
 Total Cash and Investments $ 12,963,241 

 
 

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy 
 

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the District by the California Government Code 
(or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive).  The table also identifies certain provisions of the California 
Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, 
and concentration of credit risk.  This table does  not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are 
governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the District, rather than the general provisions of the California 
Government Code or the District’s investment policy.  
 

    Maximum   Maximum 
  Authorized  Maximum   Percentage   Investment 
 Investment Type   Maturity     Of Portfolio(1)   In One Issuer
      
Local Agency Bonds 5 years  None  None 
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years  None  None 
Federal Agency Securities 5 years  None  None 
CA Local Agency Obligations 5 years  None  None 
Bankers’ Acceptance 180 days  40%  None 
Repurchase Agreements 1 year  None  None 
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days  20%  None 
Commercial Paper 270 days  25%  10% 
Mutual Funds N/A  20%  10% 
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A  20%  10% 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years  30%  None 
Medium Term Notes 5 years  30%  None 
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 2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued 
 

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy - Continued 
 

    Maximum   Maximum 
  Authorized  Maximum   Percentage   Investment 
 Investment Type   Maturity     Of Portfolio(1)   In One Issuer
      
Mortgage Pass Through Securities 5 years  20%  None 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A  None  None 
Collateralized Bank Deposits 5 years  None  None 

 
  (1) Excluding amounts held by bond trustee that are not subject to California Government Code restrictions. 
 

The District during the year exceeded the maximum percentage of the investment portfolio for mutual funds. 
 
 Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements 
 

Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustee are governed by provisions of the debt agreements, rather than the general 
provisions of the California Government Code or the District’s investment policy.   

 
 Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.  
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest 
rates.  One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest rates risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter 
term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or 
coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 

 
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments (including investments held by bond trustee) 
to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the District’s investments 
by maturity. 

 
    Remaining Maturity (in Months) 
    12 Months   13 to 24   25 to 60   More Than 
 Investment Type     Or Less   Months   Months    60 Months 
          
Money Market $ 59,883  $ 59,883  $  $  $ 
Mutual Funds  3,688,392   3,688,392        
U.S. Treasury Obligations  1,331,361      415,536   915,825   
Federal Agency Securities  2,368,385     201,120   175,866   1,991,347   52
Medium Term Notes  1,907,876   239,925   406,235   1,261,716   
State Investment Pool - LAIF  18,423   18,423       
Mono County Investment Pool  48   48        
          
 Total $ 9,374,368  $ 4,207,791  $ 997,637  $ 4,168,888  $ 52
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 2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued 
 
 Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 
 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.  
This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.  Presented below is 
the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code or the District’s investment policy, or 
debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year end for each investment type.   

 
 Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk - Continued 

 
   Minimum   Exempt 
   Legal   From 
 Investment Type     Rating   Disclosure 
      
Money Market  $ 59,883  N/A  $ 
Mutual Funds  3,688,392  AAA   
U.S. Treasury Obligations  1,331,361  N/A   
Federal Agency Securities  2,368,385  N/A   
Medium Term Notes  1,907,876  A   
State Investment Pool - LAIF   18,423  N/A   
Mono County Investment Pool  48  N/A   
      
 Total $ 9,374,368    $ 0

 
 

  Rating as of Year End 
 Investment Type     AAA   AA   A   Not Rated
          
Money Market  $ 59,883  $  $  $   $ 59,883
Mutual Funds  3,688,392   3,688,392       
U.S. Treasury Obligations  1,331,361   1,331,361       
Federal Agency Securities  2,368,385         2,368,385
Medium Term Notes  1,907,876   301,123   253,924   1,352,829   
State Investment Pool - LAIF   18,423         18,423
Mono County Investment Pool  48          48
          
 Total $ 9,374,368  $ 5,320,876  $ 253,924  $ 1,352,829  $ 2,446,739

 
 
 Concentration of Credit Risk 
 

The investment policy of the District contains no limitation on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that 
stipulated by the California Government Code.  There were no investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury 
securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of the total District’s investments. 
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 2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued 
 
 Custodial Credit Risk 
 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a government 
will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an 
outside party.  The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., 
broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities 
that are in the possession of another party.  The California Government Code and the District’s investment policy do not 
contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other 
than the following provision for deposits:  The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure 
deposits made by state or local government units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool  held by  depository 
regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit).  The market value of the pledged securities in the 
collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies.  California law also allows 
financial institutions to secure deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured 
public deposits. 

 
As of March 31, 2015, none of the District’s deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal depository insurance 
limits were held in uncollateralized accounts.  As of March 31, 2015, District investments in the following investment types 
were held by the same broker-dealer (counterparty) that was used by the District to buy the securities: 

 
 Investment Type   Reported Amount  
  
Money Market $ 59,883 
Mutual Funds  3,688,392 
U.S. Treasury Obligations  1,331,361 
Federal Agency Securities  2,368,385 
Medium Term Notes  1,907,876 

 
 
 Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
 
 The LAIF is a special fund of the California State Treasury through which local governments may pool investments.  The 

District may invest up to $50,000,000 in the fund.  Investments in LAIF are highly liquid, as deposits can be converted to 
cash within twenty-four hours without loss of interest.  Investments with LAIF are secured by the full faith and credit of the 
State of California.  The yield of LAIF during the quarter ended March 31, 2015 was 0.28%.  The carrying value and 
estimated market value of the LAIF Pool at March 31, 2015 was $62,489,999,293 and $62,518,479,478 respectively.  The 
District's share of the Pool at March 31, 2015 was approximately 0.00003 percent. 

 
 The fair value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts 

based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the 
amortized cost of that portfolio).  The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by 
LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.  Included in LAIF's investment portfolio are asset-backed securities 
totaling $1,005,984,000.  LAIF's and the District's exposure to risk (credit, market or legal) is not currently available. 
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 2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued 
 
 The LAIF has oversight by the Local Investment Advisory Board.  The LAIF Board consists of five members as designated 

by Statute.  LAIF is also regulated by California Government Code Section 16429. 
 
 Collateral for Deposits 
 

All Cash and certificates of deposits are entirely insured or collateralized. 
 
 Under the provisions of the California Government Code, California banks and savings and loan associations are required to 

secure the District's deposits by pledging government securities as collateral.  The market value of the pledged securities 
must equal at least 110% of the District's deposits.  California law also allows financial institutions to secure city deposits by 
pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the District's total deposits. 

 
 The District may waive the 110% collateral requirement for deposits which are insured up to $250,000 by the FDIC. 
 
 
 3) CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
 Capital Assets are presented as follows: 
 

 Beginning     Ending 
  Balance   Additions   Deletions   Balance 
Capital Assets, Not Depreciated:   
 Land $ 312,000 $  $  $ 312,000
 Construction in Progress  391,491  4,625,587   2,053,831  2,963,247
   
 Total Capital Assets, Not Depreciated  703,491  4,625,587   2,053,831  3,275,247
      
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:      
 Subsurface Lines  32,400,766  1,029,214     33,429,980
 General Plant Administration Facilities  11,884,022  113,643   14,263  11,983,402
 Water Treatment Facilities  30,362,012  54,770   1,186,384  29,230,398
 Collection Facilities  43,443,072  550,646     43,993,718
 Wastewater Treatment Facilities  1,498,978      1,498,978
 Source of Supply  4,871,806      4,871,806
 Vehicles and Equipment  3,770,585  276,369   104,414  3,942,540
   
  Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated  128,231,241  2,024,642    1,305,061  128,950,822
      
 Less Accumulated Depreciation  (55,367,389)  (4,460,494)    (1,048,762)  (58,779,121)
     
  Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net  72,863,852  (2,435,852)    256,299  70,171,701
   
 Total Capital Assets, Net $ 73,567,343 $ 2,189,735  $ 2,310,130 $ 73,446,948
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 4) LONG-TERM DEBT 
 

A) Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 
 

Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year was as follows: 
 

 Beginning    Ending Due Within 
 Description   Balance    Additions   Reductions     Balance    One Year  
       
Bonds Payable $  45,000 $   $  45,000  $  0 $   
Notes Payable 2,035,455  727,865 1,307,590 1,136,990 
Compensated Absences   693,284   78,936   63,026    709,194   70,920 

 Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 2,773,739 $ 78,936 $ 835,891  $ 2,016,784 $ 1,207,910 
 

 
B) Notes Payable 

 
(a) Note payable to Farmers Home Administration for drought relief; bearing interest at 5%; annual installments 

ranging from $2,000 to $108,600 plus interest; final payment January 1, 2017. 
 

  Year Ending 
  March 31,  

 
 Principal 

  
 Interest 

  
 Total  

 2016 $ 102,000  $ 10,530  $ 112,530 
 2017  108,600   5,430   114,030 
      
 Totals $ 210,600  $ 15,960  $ 226,560 

 
The District has pledged a portion of future water revenues to repay a loan with the Farmers Home Administration 
for drought relief. The District’s loan is payable solely from the water revenues.  Total principal and interest 
remaining on the Farmers Home Administration loan is $339,990, payable through fiscal year 2017.  For the current 
year, principal and interest paid by water revenues were $98,000 and $15,430, respectively.  

 
(b) Note payable to Farmers Home administration for drought relief; bearing interest at 5%; annual installments 

ranging from $700 to $32,000 plus interest; final payment January 1, 2018. 
 

  Year Ending 
  March 31,  

 
 Principal 

  
 Interest 

  
 Total  

 2016 $ 29,000  $ 4,550  $ 33,550 
 2017  30,000   3,100   33,100 
 2018  32,000   1,600   33,600 
      
 Totals $ 91,000  $ 9,250  $ 100,250 
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 4) LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued 

 
B) Notes Payable - Continued 

 
The District has pledged a portion of future water revenues to repay a loan with the Farmers Home Administration 
for drought relief. The District’s loan is payable solely from the water revenues.  Total principal and interest 
remaining on the Farmers Home Administration loan is $134,200, payable through fiscal year 2018.  For the current 
year, principal and interest paid by water revenues were $28,000 and $5,950, respectively.  

 
(c) The District entered on March 17, 2011 a promissory note of $3,000,000 to Wells Fargo Bank, National 

Association; bearing interest at 2.6%; annual installments ranging from $20,401 to $1,653,627 plus interest; final 
payment March 6, 2016.  For the current year, principal and interest paid were $601,865 and $39,146, respectively. 

 
  Year Ending 
  March 31,  

 
 Principal 

  
 Interest 

  
 Total  

 
 2016 

 
$ 1,005,990

  
$ 23,459

  
$ 1,029,438 

       
 Totals $ 1,005,990  $ 23,459  $ 1,029,438 

 
C) Compensated Absences 

 
District employees accumulate earned but unused vacation benefits and sick leave benefits which can be converted 
to cash at termination of employment.  In accordance with GASB Statement No. 16, a liability is recorded for 
unused vacation and sick leave balances since the employees’ entitlement to these balances are attributable to 
services already rendered and it is probable that virtually all of these balances will be liquidated by either paid time 
off or payment upon termination or retirement. Management has estimated the amount expected to be liquidated in 
the next current period and reflected this amount as a current liability. The remaining liability is reported as long-
term debt on the Statement of Net Position.  

 
 
 5) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS 
 
 The District provides pension benefits for all its eligible represented and non-represented employees through two 

defined contributions plans (Plans).  The Plans are the Represented Money Purchase Pension Plan for employees 
represented by memorandums of understanding and the Non-Represented Money Purchase Pension Plan.  Both Plans are 
administered for the District by FTJ FundChoice, LLC.  The District retains the authority to define and amend Plan 
provisions.  In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment 
earnings.  Full-time employees are eligible to participate from the first full month following the date of employment if 
they are over 18 years of age.  The District’s contributions for each employee vest annually at 20% per year after 1,000 
hours of service for that year and are fully vested after five year continuous service.  District’s contributions for, and 
earnings forfeited by, employees who leave employment before five years of service are used to supplement the 
District’s current period contribution requirement.  The District contributed an amount equal to 20% of the participant’s 
total compensation for both represented and non-represented employees.  There were no changes to the Plans during the 
fiscal year ended March 31, 2015. 
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 5) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS - Continued 
 
 Employees are not required to, and do not, contribute to the Plans.  During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, payroll 

for covered employees were $1,179,380 and $2,044,727 for represented and non-represented employees, respectively.  
Total District’s payroll was $3,224,107.  Contributions for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015 were $235,876 and 
$408,945 for represented and non-represented employees, respectively.   

 
 
 6) RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
 The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and 

omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  The District participates in the Association of California Water 
Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority (ACWAJPIA), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk 
carrier management and insurance program for member agencies.  The purpose of ACWAJPIA is to spread the adverse 
effect of losses among the members and to purchase excess insurance as a group, thereby reducing its expenses.  The 
District pays an annual premium to the ACWAJPIA for its general liability, automobile, and property coverage.  The 
agreement for formation of the ACWAJPIA provides that the ACWAJPIA will be self-sustaining through member 
premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of $500,000 for each insured event.  The 
District continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including worker’s compensation, employee 
health, and accident insurance. 

 
 
 7) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
 Various claims have been filed against the District.  In the opinion of the District’s management and legal counsel, the 

claims will not have a material impact on the basic financial statements. 
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New Enterprise Water Wastewater Totals

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,160,397$        $                  4,175,173$       7,335,570$       
Investments 112,153            728,120            4,767,397         5,607,670         
Receivables:

Billings 244,947            138,968            383,915            
Interest 348                   11,326              5,127                16,801              
Property Taxes 1,586,270         462,877            2,049,147         
Loans 1,202,642         1,202,642         
Other 66,178              66,178              

Inventory 115,083            115,083            230,166            
Deposits and Prepaid Expenses 98,207              98,206              196,413            

Total Current Assets 4,475,540         2,783,953         9,829,009         17,088,502       

Land and Construction in Progress,
Not Being Depreciated 2,996,689         278,558            3,275,247         

Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 263,295            47,488,828       22,419,579       70,171,702       

Total Assets 4,738,835         53,269,470       32,527,146       90,535,451       

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 274,889            173,839            448,728            
Accrued Expenses 183,533            161,434            344,967            
Retentions Payable 74,761              74,761              
Deposits Payable 3,000                16,648              15,594              35,242              
Accrued Interest Payable 4,676                579                   5,255                
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 725,011            482,899            1,207,910         

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Long-Term Debt:

Notes Payable 170,600            170,600            
Compensated Absences 312,121            326,153            638,274            

Total Liabilities 3,000                1,762,239         1,160,498         2,925,737         

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Property Taxes 872,988            253,448            1,126,436         

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 0                       872,988            253,448            1,126,436         

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 263,295            49,926,187       22,251,477       72,440,959       
Unrestricted 4,472,540         708,056            8,861,723         14,042,319       

Total Net Position 4,735,835$      50,634,243$    31,113,200$    86,483,278$    

Mammoth Community Water District
Combining Schedule of Net Position

March 31, 2015
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New Enterprise Water Wastewater Totals

OPERATING REVENUES
Water Services $ 3,081,224$       $ 3,081,224$       
Wastewater Services 2,644,471         2,644,471         
Permits 123,757            60,862              184,619            

Total Operating Revenues 0                       3,204,981         2,705,333         5,910,314         

OPERATING EXPENSES
General and Administrative 23,316              1,572,930         1,572,930         3,169,176         
Water Services 3,332,264         3,332,264         
Wastewater Services 1,485,979         1,485,979         
Depreciation and Amortization 60,351              2,901,172         1,498,971         4,460,494         

Total Operating Expenses 83,667              7,806,366         4,557,880         12,447,913       

Operating Income (Loss) (83,667)             (4,601,385)        (1,852,547)        (6,537,599)        

NON-OPERATING REVENUES 

(EXPENSES)
Property Taxes 253,561            3,535,382         2,424,473         6,213,416         
SCE Energy Credits 602,930            602,930            
Investment Earnings 2,647                109,107            61,962              173,716            
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets (197,786)           1,681                (196,105)           
Other Revenues 61,255              6,882                5,571                73,708              
Interest Expenses (41,256)             (17,930)             (59,186)             
Other Expenses (65)                    (65)                    

Total Non-Operating Revenues 
(Expenses) 317,398            3,412,329         3,078,687         6,808,414         

Transfers In 11,697              177,504            125,316            314,517            
Transfers Out (17,601)             (106,641)           (190,275)           (314,517)           

Change in Net Position 227,827            (1,118,193)        1,161,181         270,815            

Net Position - Beginning 4,508,008         51,752,436       29,952,019       86,212,463       

Net Position - Ending 4,735,835$       50,634,243$     31,113,200$     86,483,278$     

Mammoth Community Water District
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended March 31, 2015
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New Enterprise Water Wastewater Totals

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Receipts from Customers $                  3,199,231$      2,700,096$      5,899,327$      
Payments to Suppliers (23,316)            (2,230,189)       (987,376)          (3,240,881)       
Payments to Employees (4,990)              (2,479,922)       (2,027,237)       (4,512,149)       
Other Revenues 60,907             143,940           621,192           826,039           
Other Expenses (65)                   (65)                   

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities 32,536             (1,366,940)       306,675           (1,027,729)       

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Advances from Other Funds 11,697             177,504           125,316           314,517           
Advances to Other Funds (17,601)            (106,641)          (190,275)          (314,517)          
Property Taxes 297,073           3,280,919        2,586,287        6,164,279        

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Non-Capital Financing Activities 291,169           3,351,782        2,521,328        6,164,279        

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition & Construction of Capital Assets (3,818,721)       (757,263)          (4,575,984)       
Proceeds from the Sale of Assets 38,098             1,681               39,779             
Principal Payments on Long-term Debt (460,638)          (312,227)          (772,865)          
Interest Paid (43,144)            (18,506)            (61,650)            

Net Cash Flows Provided (Used) by 
Capital and Related Financing Activities 0                      (4,284,405)       (1,086,315)       (5,370,720)       

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Investments (126,702)          (3,144,868)       (3,063,521)       (6,335,091)       
Proceeds from the Sale and Maturities 

of Investments 124,788           5,280,001        834,553           6,239,342        
Interest on Investments 4,636               164,430           87,673             256,739           

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 2,722               2,299,563        (2,141,295)       160,990           

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and
Cash Equivalents 326,427           0                      (399,607)          (73,180)            

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 2,833,970        0                      4,574,780        7,408,750        

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year 3,160,397$      0$                    4,175,173$      7,335,570$      

Mammoth Community Water District
Combining Schedule of Cash Flows 

Year Ended March 31, 2015
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New Enterprise Water Wastewater Totals

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME 
(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Operating Income (Loss) (83,667)$          (4,601,385)$     (1,852,547)$     (6,537,599)$     
Depreciation and Amortization 60,351          2,901,172     1,498,971     4,460,494     
Other Revenues 60,907          143,940        621,192        826,039        
Other Expenses (65)                                                          (65)                

Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in Operating Assets:

Account Receivable (4,990)              (7,635)              (9,287)              (21,912)            
Inventory (3,170)              (3,170)              (6,340)              
Deposits and Prepaid Expenses 5,873               5,874               11,747             

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 66,989             16,783             83,772             
Accrued Expenses 42,912             16,619             59,531             
Retentions Payable 74,761                                     74,761             
Deposits Payable 1,885               4,050               5,935               
Compensated Absences 7,718               8,190               15,908             

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities 32,536$          (1,366,940)$    306,675$         (1,027,729)$    

Mammoth Community Water District
Combining Schedule of Cash Flows - Continued

Year Ended March 31, 2015
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_______ __, 2015 

 
 
Board of Directors 
Mammoth Community Water District 
Mammoth Lakes, CA 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate remaining fund information 
of the Mammoth Community Water District (the “District”) for the year ended March 31, 2015.  Professional standards 
require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and 
Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit.  
We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated March 25, 2015.  Professional standards also 
require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Findings 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  The significant accounting policies 
used by the District are described in Note 1 to the financial statements.  No new accounting policies were adopted and the 
application of existing policies was not changed during 2015.  We noted no transactions entered into by the District during 
the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.  All significant transactions have been recognized 
in the financial statements in the proper period. 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.  Certain 
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the 
possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.  The most sensitive estimates 
affecting the financial statements were:  
 

Management’s estimate of the fair value of investments is based on information provided by financial institutions. 
We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the fair value of investments in determining that it 
is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

 
Management’s estimate of capital assets depreciation is based on historical estimates of each capitalized item’s 
useful life.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the property and equipment 
depreciation in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Management’s estimate of deferred property taxes is based on property taxes received from the County of Mono 
and then deferred according to the estimated time period they relate to.  We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to develop the deferred property taxes in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements taken as a whole. 
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Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement users.  
The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were: 

 
The disclosure of the fair value of investments in Note 2 to the financial statements represents amounts 
susceptible to market fluctuation. 
 
The disclosure of capital assets in Note 3 to the financial statements is based on historical information which 
could differ from actual useful lives of each capitalized item. 

 
The financial statements disclosures are neutral, consistent and clear. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.  However, 
our audit was delayed because several adjustments needed to be made to capital assets as well as other accounts. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than 
those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.  Management has corrected all 
such misstatements.  The following material misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures were corrected by 
management: 
 

 Adjustments to capital assets, Assessment District receivable, accounts payable, SCE credits, and salaries and 
wages. 

 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management as a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether 
or not resolved to our satisfaction that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report.  We are pleased 
to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation letter dated 
_______ __, 2015. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, similar to 
obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the 
District’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, 
our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the 
relevant facts.  To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 
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Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, with 
management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors.  However, these discussions occurred in the normal course 
of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 
 
Other Matters 
 
We were engaged to report on the combining schedules, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI.  With 
respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and 
methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the 
information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements.  We compared and reconciled the 
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves. 
 
Restriction on Use 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of the District and is not intended 
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
Very truly yours, 
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 

 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Mammoth Community Water District 
Mammoth Lakes, California 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities and the remaining fund information of the 
Mammoth Community Water District (the “District”) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2015, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements and have issued our report 
thereon dated _______ __, 2015. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) to determine auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the financial statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the District’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal 
control.   
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in 
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A 
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected 
on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.   
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and 
therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.  We did identify certain 
deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses, as item 2015-001, that 
we consider to be a material weakness. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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District’s Response to Findings 
 
The District’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and 
Responses.  The District’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the result of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control or on compliance.  This report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s 
internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
Riverside, California 
_________ __, 2015 
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Mammoth Community Water District 
Schedule of Findings and Responses 

Year Ended March 31, 2015 
 
 

(2015-001) 
Monthly and Year-End Reviews 

 
Finding: 
 
In our review of internal controls, we noted that monthly and year end reconciliations were being prepared but there 
was no indication of these reconciliations being reviewed other than the preparer.  These reviews assist in 
determining whether the reconciliations are proper, avoiding human error and verifying that amounts reconcile to 
the District’s accounting records.  During our audit, we had to make several adjustments at the end of the year to 
reconcile some of the more significant accounts.  
 
Recommendation: 
 
The District has already setup procedures to perform monthly reconciliations.  We recommend that the District, 
have the Finance Manager review these monthly reconciliations, document the review with a signoff process (often 
initials and date) and as well develop year-end review procedures to determine that accounts are properly 
reconciled. 
 
Response: 
 
The District agrees with the audit findings regarding review of monthly and year-end reconciliations, and has 
established regular procedures to comply with the required internal controls. 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
APPLIED TO APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT WORKSHEETS 

 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Mammoth Community Water District  
Mammoth Lakes, California 
 
We have applied the procedures enumerated below to the accompanying Appropriations Limit documents of the 
Mammoth Community Water District, for the year ended March 31, 2015.  These procedures, which were agreed to by 
the Mammoth Community Water District and the League of California Cities (as presented in the League publication 
entitled Article XIIIB Appropriations Limitation Uniform Guidelines) were performed solely to assist the District in 
meeting the requirements of Section 1.5 of Article XIIIB of the California Constitution.  The District’s management is 
responsible for the Appropriations Limit Worksheet.  This engagement to apply agreed-upon procedures was conducted 
in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  The 
sufficiency of the procedures is solely the responsibility of those parties specified in this report.  Consequently, we 
make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which 
this report has been requested or for any other purpose. 
 
The procedures performed and our findings were as follows: 
 
1. We obtained the completed documents required by the Article XIIIB Appropriations Limitation Uniform 

Guidelines, and determined that the limit and annual adjustment factors were adopted by resolution of the Board 
of Directors. We also determined that the population and inflation options were selected by a recorded vote of 
the Board of Directors. 

 
 Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures. 
 
2. For the accompanying Appropriations Limit worksheet, we added last year's limit to total adjustments and 

agreed the resulting amount to this year's limit. 
 
 Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures. 
 
3. We agreed the current year information presented in the accompanying Appropriations Limit worksheet to the 

other documents referenced in #1 above. 
 
 Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures. 
 
4. We agreed the prior year appropriations limit presented in the accompanying Appropriations Limit worksheet to 

the prior year appropriations limit adopted by the Board of Directors during the prior year. 
 
 Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures. 
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We were not engaged to, and did not, conduct an audit, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion 
on the accompanying Appropriations Limit worksheet. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  Had we 
performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 
 No procedures have been performed with respect to the determination of the appropriation limit for the base year, as 
defined by the League publication entitled Article XIIIB Appropriations Limitation Uniform Guidelines. 
 
This report is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of the Mammoth Community 
Water District and is not intended to be used by anyone other than these specified parties.  However, this report is a 
matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 
 
 
_________ __, 2015 
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MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT 
APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT COMPUTATION 

2014 - 2015 
 
 
 
    
   2014 - 2015 
    
Per Capita Personal Income Change    -0.23% 
    
Population Change    
 City Population Growth    -1.21%  
    
CPI Change Converted to a Ratio    0.9977 
    
Population Change Converted to a Ratio    0.9879 
    
Calculation of Growth Factor    0.9856 
    
2013-2014 Amended Limit $ 10,965,737   
    
2014-2015 Appropriations Limit $ 10,807,830   
 (10,965,737 X 0.9856) 
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Agenda Item:  B-3 
09-03-2015

Page 1 of 2 

AGENDA ITEM
Subject:   Discussion and Possible Adoption of Urgency Ordinance No. 09-03-15-14 Amending Conservation 
Level Provisions of Division XII of Chapter 12 of the District’s Water Code regarding Water Shortage 
Conditions, Water Conservation Measures, and Enforcement 

Information Provided By:   Pat Hayes, General Manager 

Background 

Due to the continuing drought conditions, the Board approved Resolution 04-01-15-08 declaring a water 
shortage, and implemented Level 3 restrictions on April 1, 2015.   Subsequently, conservation measures have 
been highly effective in reducing water demand over the 2013 year.  In June, strong water conservation by 
our customers resulted in a reduction of 31%, in July, 2015, a 38% reduction and in August 2015, a 29%.  The 
State Water Resources Control Board has cited the District’s water conservation to be in the very top levels 
of conservation state-wide.  Monthly water supply updates provided to the Board indicated that we had 
sufficient resources to meet the lowered demand.   

Discussion 

On the water supply side, we are completely reliant on our nine wells.  Water levels in Wells 1, 6 and 10, 
have dropped, Well 18 is in need of rehabilitation to restore capacity, and production is  very limited.  Well 1 
can only be run about 5 hours per day.  Last Wednesday, Well 15 had a PRV failure, knocking it offline.  While 
it was being repaired with a used part off the shelf, Well 10 bore the brunt of the load.  During this time, 
water levels dropped to the low level shutoff and the well shutdown.  At that point the only alternative to 
meet demand would have been to tap our emergency storage in Lake Mary.  This indicated that our supplies 
are not only very limited, but that the contingencies to overcome failures are critically stretched.   

While the NOAA forecast for the coming winter is encouraging, we cannot guarantee when our very limited 
water resources will be replenished.  Therefore it is prudent to stretch our supplies by limiting demand 
wherever possible.  

Staff efforts and customer response to water conservation have been highly successful in getting the District 
through the summer irrigation months.  The current Level restrictions limit irrigation to two days per week 
and between the times of 10 pm and 9 am.  Customers have been asked to reduce consumption 30% over 
the same month’s use in 2013.  Most customers have heeded the call for conservation.  However, there are 
some outliers who are using large amounts of water for irrigation and watering for the entire 11 hour period 
allowed in the Ordinance.   

Now that we are into September the days are getting shorter, temperatures are cooling off and the need for 
irrigation is dropping.   
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There is an immediate need to conserve, and to accomplish that, the Ordinance needs to be strengthened to 
eliminate some loopholes.  The attached redline version of the Ordinance addresses this by reducing the 
watering hours for Level 3 from 11 hours per day to 3 hours per day and limits the hours to 4 am to 7 am.  
Additionally MAWA users are being dropped from 100% allocation to 80% allocation.  Language has also 
been added to clean up some terms and time frames, and make conservation mandatory for every customer. 

Conclusion 

Our water supplies are extremely tight, water is still being wasted unnecessarily on irrigation and the 
Ordinance requires additional language limiting watering times to 3 hours per day in order to stretch our 
water resource.  

Fiscal Impact  
The additional conservation measures are not expected to have a significant effect on operating revenue.    

Requested Action 
 
Staff requests that the Board adopt Urgency Ordinance No. 09-03-15-14 amending conservation level 
provisions of Division XII of Chapter 12 of the District’s Water Code regarding Water Shortage Conditions, 
Water Conservation Measures, and Enforcement. 
 

 



  DIVISION XII WATER SHORTAGE CONDITIONS, WATER CONSERVATION 
STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS, AND ENFORCEMENT 

Section 12.01. Water Shortages and Water Conservation Standards and Regulations. 

A. Purposes

1. This Section 12.01 establishes certain permanent and mandatory water

management requirements necessary to conserve water, enable effective water supply 

planning, assure reasonable and beneficial use of water, prevent waste of water, prevent 

unreasonable use of water, and prevent unreasonable methods of use of water within the 

District service area in order to assure adequate supplies of water to meet the needs of the 

public, and further the public health, safety and welfare, recognizing that water is a scarce 

natural resource that requires careful management not only in times of drought, but at all 

times. 

2. This Section 12.01 also establishes regulations to be implemented during times of

declared water shortages, or declared water shortage emergencies.  It establishes four levels 

of actions to be implemented in times of shortage, with increasing restrictions on water use 

in response to decreasing water supply or water production capabilities. 

3. Levels 1 through 4 water supply shortage measures are mandatory and require

increasingly restrictive measures in order to attain escalating conservation goals. All levels 

will be reinforced through public education and awareness measures. 

B. Application of Section 12.01

1. This Section 12.01 applies to any person using potable or raw water provided by

the District, including persons located outside the District. 



2. The provisions of this Section 12.01 do not apply to uses of water necessary to 

protect public health and safety or for essential government services, such as law 

enforcement, fire and other similar emergency services. 

3. Nothing in this Section 12.01 is intended to affect or limit the ability of the General 

Manager or his/her designee to declare and respond to an unforeseeable disaster or water 

emergency, such as an earthquake or other major disruption of the District’s water supply, 

pursuant to the general laws of the District or other provisions of law applicable to the 

District.  

C. Permanent Water Conservation Requirements – Prohibition Against Waste 

1. Intent  

 Because Mammoth Lakes is a semi-arid region, water conservation must be 

practiced on a regular, year-round basis.  California and Mammoth Lakes have historically 

experienced severe and extended drought periods which have the potential to limit 

available water supplies for the Mammoth Lakes community’s current and future 

population.  Therefore, it is critical that the public become water conscious and conserve 

water at all times.  

2. Permanent Water Conservation Requirements 

The following water conservation requirements shall be in effect at all times 

regardless of whether or not any declared water shortage is in effect, and are permanent 

and mandatory.  They are necessary to conserve water, enable effective water supply 

planning, assure reasonable and beneficial use of water, prevent waste of water and prevent 

unreasonable use of water.  Violations will be considered a waste and an unreasonable use 



of water and are subject to penalties as provided in Section 12.02 of this Division XII and 

by other applicable law.   

(a) Runoff and Ponding – No person shall cause or permit any District

supplied water furnished to any property to flow from any hose, pipe, valve,

faucet, sprinkler, or irrigation device for a distance of 50 feet or greater if

such flow can reasonably be prevented or allow water to pond greater than

0.25 inch in a street, parking area, or on other impervious surfaces.

(b) No Overfilling of Swimming Pools and Spas – Overfilling of swimming

pools and spas such that overflow water is discharged onto an adjoining

sidewalk, driveway, street, alley, gutter or ditch is prohibited.

(c) Leaks – No person shall permit leaks of water that he/she has the authority

to eliminate.

(d) Washing Hard Surface Areas – Washing down hard or paved surfaces,

including but not limited to sidewalks, walkways, driveways, parking areas,

tennis courts, patios or garages, is prohibited unless the hose is equipped

with functioning automatic shut-off device.

(e) Vehicle Washing – A hose used to wash commercial and noncommercial

vehicles, boats, trailers and other types of vehicles is required to have a

functioning automatic shut-off device.

(f) Hose equipped with irrigation device - A hose connected to an irrigation

device, e.g. landscape sprinkler, must be equipped with a timer that will

automatically shut-off the water supply after a set amount of time.



(g) Landscape Irrigation: Permitted Hours and Permitted Days of Week - 

The watering of vegetation outside of any building is permitted between the 

hours of 5:00 p.m. to 10:00 a.m.  Customers with even numbered addresses 

are permitted to water outside vegetation only on Monday, Wednesday and 

Saturday.  Customers with odd numbered addresses are permitted to water 

outside vegetation only on Tuesday, Thursday and Sunday.  For those 

customers who do not have a numbered address, the District will provide 

such customers of their watering days upon request, which shall be 3 days 

a week.  Provided that the customer has a District approved irrigation plan, 

a customer with an irrigation meter who does not exceed 150% of the 

District Maximum Applied Water Allowance (MAWA) shall not be subject 

to the even and odd day of week requirements, but shall comply with the 

time of day prohibitions.   

(h) Additional Irrigation Requirements – No person shall cause or permit the 

following: 

i. Misting of irrigation devices;   

ii. Operation of a broken sprinkler head; or 
 

iii. Operation of a sprinkler head out of adjustment and the arc of the 

spray head is over a street, parking area, or other impervious surface; 

(i) MAWA Exceedance - A customer with a separate irrigation meter shall not 

exceed 150% of the District MAWA.  

(j) Dining Establishments - shall serve water to customers only upon request.  



(k) Hotel or Motel Linen Laundry - The owner or operator of a hotel, motel 

or other establishment that offers or provides lodging or rental 

accommodations for compensation shall provide customers with the option 

of not having towels and linen laundered daily.  They must prominently 

display notice of this option in each bathroom using clear and easily 

understood language.  

3. Exemptions from Permanent and Water Level Condition Water Restrictions 

(a) The following are exempt from the watering day restrictions specified in 

this subsection C, but are subject to the watering hour restrictions:  

 (i) Irrigation systems with a separate irrigation meter where the 

customer has a District approved MAWA irrigation plan and the 

customer does not exceed 150% of the District MAWA; 

(ii) Use of recycled water that is not supplemented by  potable or raw 

water supplied by the District, as long as the recycled water supply 

is available; and 

(iii) Public parks, school playing fields and golf courses. 

(b) Upon written request to the District, a customer may receive an exemption 

from restrictions on irrigation set forth in subsection C and D.2.(a) for up to 

30 days from application of the restrictions on days and hours of irrigation 

set forth in subsection 12.01 C.2.g. above in order to plant new seed or 

install new turf.  The 30 day exemption, commences from the date of 

installation of the turf or the initial seeding.  Exemptions for longer periods 

will require approval from the District Board of Directors. 



(c) Commercial plant nurseries shall be exempt from the restrictions on days 

and hours of irrigation set forth in subsections C and D. 

(d) Hand-watering from a watering can shall be exempt from the restrictions on 

days and hours of irrigation set forth in subsections C and D.  

(f) Hand-watering with a hose having a functioning automatic shut-off device 

shall be exempt from the restrictions on days and hours of irrigation set forth 

in subsection C, D.2.(a) and D.3.(a)  but shall be subject to the restrictions 

on irrigation set forth in subsections D.4.(a) and D.5.(a). This exemption 

does not apply for installing new turf or lawns. 

(e) Other variances from the water restrictions set forth in subsections C and D 

may be granted by the General Manager pursuant to the provisions of 

subsection F.  

D. Threatened or Existing Water Supply Shortages – Water Level Conditions and 

Mandatory Reductions 

1. General 

There shall be four levels of water restrictions, which may be implemented after 

the District Board of Directors by resolution has declared the existence or threatened 

existence of a water shortage.  Whenever the Board has made such a declaration, and during 

the course of such threatened or existing water shortage, the Board by motion may 

implement any level of shortage as it deems necessary, and shall authorize the General 

Manager and District staff to enforce it.  Any level of restrictions so implemented by the 

Board shall remain in effect until the Board by motion determines otherwise.  



The four levels of water shortages and the approximate condition of the shortage 

are described below.  Measures to reduce water demand are targeted to the shortage 

condition and apply to potable and raw water uses.    

 2. Level 1 Water Supply Shortage 

The Board of Directors by motion may declare a Level 1 water supply shortage 

condition ("Level 1 Condition") when there is a reasonable probability, due to a projected 

imbalance in available water supply and projected peak demand, that there will be a supply 

shortage and that a mandatory reduction in demand for each consumer of 10 percent of 

thebelow that consumer’s demand forin the sameeach month in calendarof the year 2013 

year consumer demand reduction of up to 10 percent of the average demand for each month 

for the last 5 years is needed in order to ensure that sufficient supplies will be available to 

meet anticipated demands. Upon such declaration, the General Manager or his/her designee 

shall take the necessary actions to implement the mandatory Level 1 Condition 

conservation practices identified below in this subsection.   

  During the period of a declared Level 1 Condition, all water customers shall be 

required to comply with the permanent water conservation measures in subsection C and 

the following additional water conservation measures:  

(a) Irrigation of residential and commercial landscapes, except golf courses, 

public parks and school playing fields, shall not occur between 10:00 a.m. 

and 7:00 p.m.  Customers with a monthly Maximum Applied Water 

Allowance may not exceed 150% of the monthly allowance. 

(b) Repair or prevention of all water leaks shall be carried out upon discovery 

by the customer or within five days after notification from the District. 



(c) No hard surfaces including sidewalks, driveways, parking areas or decks 

may be washed or hosed down with water supplied through the District’s 

water system, unless required by health or safety requirements.  

(d) After the District institutes a Level 1 Condition or higher water level 

condition in any year, there shall be no new lawn areas planted (whether by 

sod, seed, hydro mulch, or other means) which will require water from the 

District’s potable water system.   

(e) Upon notice to the District and approval by the General Manager or his/her 

designee, no more than five percent of existing turf area may be replaced or 

reseeded.   

(f) Water used for general construction and maintenance activities, including 

dust control, compaction and concrete curing, may come from one of two 

sources, potable or reclaimed.  Such customers have the option to utilize 

either a fire hydrant meter supplied by the District and pay for the water 

used or reclaimed water (at no cost) available from the District’s wastewater 

treatment plant.  The use of construction water will be subject to inspection 

and possible termination if any pooling, ponding, or other waste of water 

occurs.  

(g) Any other measures that the Board determines will promote the appropriate 

level of water use reductions under this water shortage level and that are 

specified in any motion or other action adopted by the Board. 

3. Level 2 Water Supply Shortage   

The Board of Directors by motion may declare a Level 2 water supply shortage 



condition ("Level 2 Condition") when there is a reasonable probability, due to a projected 

imbalance in available water supply and projected peak demand, that there will be a supply 

shortage and that a mandatory reduction in demand for each consumer of 20 percent of 

thebelow that consumer’s demand for eachin the same month of thein calendar year 2013 

year consumer demand reduction of up to 20 percent of the average demand for each month 

for the last 5 years is required in order to ensure that sufficient supplies will be available to 

meet anticipated demands.  Upon the declaration of a Level 2 Condition, the General 

Manager or his/her designee shall take the necessary actions to notify the public and 

implement the mandatory Level 2 Condition conservation practices identified below in this 

subsection.   

During the period of a declared Level 2 Condition, all water customers shall be 

required to comply with all Level 1 Condition measures, as set forth above, and also shall 

comply with the following conservation measures:  

(a) Irrigation of residential and commercial landscapes, except golf courses, 

public parks and school playing fields, shall not occur between 9:00 a.m. 

and 8:00 p.m. Customers with a monthly Maximum Applied Water 

Allowance may not exceed 125% of the monthly allowance. 

(b) No turf areas may be replaced or reseeded. 

(c) Repair or prevention of all water leaks shall be carried out upon discovery 

by the customer or within 3 days after notification from the District.  

(d) Water from the District’s potable water system used for general 

construction and maintenance activities, including dust control, compaction 

and concrete curing, is not permitted.  Reclaimed water from the District’s 



wastewater treatment plant must be utilized for these purposes.  

(e) Any other measures that the Board determines will promote the appropriate 

level of water use reductions under this water shortage level and that are 

specified in any motion or other action adopted by the Board. 

4. Level 3 Water Supply Shortage  

The Board of Directors by motion, may declare a Level 3 water supply shortage 

condition ("Level 3 Condition") when there is a reasonable probability, due to a projected 

imbalance in available water supply and projected peak demand, that there will be a supply 

shortage and that a mandatory reduction in demand for each consumer demand reduction 

of up to 30 percent of thebelow that consumer’s demand for eachin the same month of thein 

calendar average year 2013 demand for each month for the last 5 yearsyear  is required in 

order to ensure that sufficient supplies will be available to meet essential demands.  Upon 

declaration of a Level 3 Condition, the General Manager or his/her designee shall take the 

necessary actions to implement the mandatory Level 3 Condition conservation practices 

identified below in this subsection.  

During the period of a declared Level 3 Condition, all water customers shall comply 

with all Level 1 Condition and Level 2 Condition water conservation measures and also 

shall comply with the following additional conservation measures:  

(a) Irrigation of residential and commercial landscapes, except golf courses, 

public parks and school playing fields, shall not occur between 97:00 a.m. 

and 10:00 p.m4:00 a.m.  Customers with odd addresses will be permitted to 

water only on Thursday and Sunday.  Customers with even addresses will 

be permitted to water only on Wednesday and Saturday.   Customers who 



do not have a numbered address will be notified by the District of their two 

watering days. Customers with a monthly Maximum Applied Water 

Allowance may not exceed 10080% of the monthly allowance. 

(b) Filling or re-filling of ornamental ponds is prohibited, except to the extent 

needed to sustain plants or animals that have been actively managed within 

the water feature prior to the declaration of a Level 3 Condition.  

(c) All water leaks, breaks or other plumbing malfunctions shall be repaired 

upon discovery by the customer or within forty-eight hours after notification 

by the District, with the exception of rental properties, which shall have up 

to seventy-two hours to repair interior unit leaks, in order to comply with 

State laws regarding the provision of notice to tenants.   

(d) Using water to wash commercial or non-commercial vehicles, boats, trailers 

and other types of vehicles is prohibited, except at commercial car washing 

facilities.   

(e) Any other measures that the Board determines will promote the appropriate 

level of water use reductions under this water shortage level and that are 

specified in any motion or other action adopted by the Board. 

5. Level 4 Water Supply Shortage 

The Board of Directors may declare by motion a Level 4 water supply shortage 

condition (“Level 4 Condition") when there is a reasonable probability, due to a projected 

imbalance in available water supply and projected peak demand, that there will be a supply 

shortage and that a mandatory reduction in demand for each consumer of 50 percent of 

thebelow that consumer’s demand for eachin the same month of thein calendar year 2013 



consumer demand reduction of up to 50 percent of the average demand for each month for 

the last 5 years is required in order to ensure that sufficient supplies will be available to 

meet essential demands.  Upon declaration of Level 4 Condition, the General Manager or 

his/her designee shall take all necessary actions to implement the mandatory Level 4 

Condition conservation practices identified below in this subsection. 

During the period of a declared Level 4 Condition, all water customers shall be required to 

comply with all Level 1 Condition, Level 2 Condition and Level 3 Condition water 

conservation measures, and also shall comply with the following additional conservation 

measures: 

(a) All landscape irrigation, except  (1) the exemption for golf courses, public 

parks, school playing fields, and landscape products of commercial growers 

and nurseries; and (2) the exemption allowing landscape watering with 

hand-held hose with shut-off nozzle Sunday, Wednesday, Thursday, and 

Saturday between 5 p.m. to 9 a.m., shall be prohibited.   

(b) All water leaks, breaks or other plumbing malfunctions shall be repaired 

upon discovery by the customer or within twenty-four hours after 

notification by the District, with the exception of rental properties, which 

shall have up to seventy-two hours to repair interior unit leaks, in order to 

comply with State laws regarding the provision of notice to tenants.  

(c) Filling or refilling of residential pools and spas is prohibited.  

(d) Any other measures that the Board determines will promote the appropriate 

level of water use reductions under this water shortage level and that are 

specified in any motion or other action adopted by the Board. 



 
6. Golf Course, Public Park and School Playing Field Water Restrictions 

During water shortage level conditions, golf courses, public parks and school 

playing fields shall be subject to only the following water restrictions for irrigation; 

provided that golf courses, public parks and school playing fields utilizing recycled water 

for irrigation are exempt from this subsection 6: 

(a) At Level 1 water restrictions, the owners of golf courses, public parks and 

school playing fields shall submit a water conservation plan to the District 

that describes existing and planned methods for reducing water use by 

mandatory reduction in demand for each consumer of 10 percent of 

thebelow that consumer’s demand for eachin the same month of thein 

calendar year 2013. consumer demand reduction of up to 50 percent of the 

average demand for each month for the last 5 years i.  This water 

conservation plan shall be approved by the General Manager.  Golf Courses, 

public parks and school playing fields shall be subject to the Level 1 

irrigation water restrictions until such plan is approved.   

(b) At Level 2 water restrictions, the owners of golf courses, public parks and 

school playing fields shall submit a water conservation plan to the District 

that describes methods for reducing water use by mandatory reduction in 

demand for each consumer of 20 percent of thebelow that consumer’s 

demand for eachin the same month of thein calendar year 2013. consumer 

demand reduction of up to 50 percent of the average demand for each month 

for the last 5 years  up to 20% of the customer’s average use for each month 

for the past 5 years.  This water conservation plan shall be approved by the 



General Manager.  Golf courses, public parks and school playing fields shall 

be subject to the Level 2 irrigation water restrictions until such plan is 

approved. 

(c)  At Level 3 water restrictions, owners of golf courses, public parks and 

school playing fields shall submit a water conservation plan to the District 

that describes methods for reducing water use by mandatory reduction in 

demand for each consumer of 30 percent below that consumer’s demand in 

the same month in calendar year 2013. by up to 30% of the customer’s 

average use for each month for the past 5 years.  This water conservation 

plan shall be approved by the General Manager.  Golf courses, public parks 

and school playing fields shall be subject to the Level 3 irrigation water 

restrictions until such plan is approved.  

(d) At Level 4 water restrictions, owners of golf courses, public parks and 

school playing fields shall submit a water conservation plan to the District 

that describes methods for reducing water use by mandatory reduction in 

demand for each consumer of 50 percent below that consumer’s demand in 

the same month in calendar year 2013. up to 50% of the customer’s average 

use for each month for the past 5 years.  This water conservation plan shall 

be approved by the General Manager.  Golf courses, public parks and school 

playing fields shall be subject to the Level 4 irrigation water restrictions 

until such plan is approved.    

7. School and Town Playing Fields 

Whenever the Board of Directors has implemented water shortage level conditions, 



it may, if in the public interest, permit the irrigation of the Mammoth High School, the 

Mammoth Middle School and the Mammoth Elementary School playing fields and the 

Town’s Shady Rest Park on days and during times fixed by motion of the Board of 

Directors.  

8. Recycled Water 

The water restrictions set forth in subsection D shall not apply to the use of recycled 

water for any purpose.  

 
E. Procedures for Determination and Notification of Water Supply Shortage Level 

Conditions 

1. The determinations of the appropriate level of water conservation conditions shall 

be supported by a recommendation from the General Manager, along with a written 

explanation of the existence of the facts and circumstances supporting the determination. 

A copy of the written determination will be filed with the Board Secretary. The General 

Manager or his/her designee may publish a notice of the determination of the existence of 

a water conservation level condition in a newspaper circulated within the District. The 

District shall post notice of the water conservation level condition on its website and 

include it in its regular billing statement or in a separate mailing to the District’s customers.   

The District will monitor the projected supply and demand for water during periods 

of emergency or drought.  Based on this monitoring, the General Manager will recommend 

to the Board of Directors the implementation or termination of the appropriate level of 

water conservation.  

2. The mandatory conservation measures applicable to Level 1 Condition, Level 2 

Condition, Level 3 Condition or Level 4 Condition will take effect three days following 



the date of mailing notice of the declared level either through the District’s regular billing 

statements or a separate mailing to the District’s customers.   

3. The Board of Directors by motion may declare an end to a particular water shortage 

level condition upon the recommendation of the General Manager at any meeting of the 

Board of Directors.  

F.  Variance 

1. If, due to unique circumstances, a specific requirement of this Section 12.01 would 

result in an undue hardship to a customer using District water or to property upon which 

such water is used, that is disproportionate to the impacts to District water users generally 

or to similar property or classes of water uses, then the customer may apply for a variance 

to the requirement as provided in this subsection F. 

2. The variance may be granted or conditionally granted only upon a written finding 

of the existence of facts demonstrating an undue hardship to a customer or to property upon 

which water is used, that is disproportionate to the impacts to District water users generally 

or to similar property or classes of water user due to specific and unique circumstances of 

the user or the user’s property.  

3. Application.  An application for a variance shall be in a written form as prescribed 

by the General Manager or his/her designee and shall be accompanied by a non-refundable 

processing fee in an amount set by the Board of Directors.   The written application shall 

be accompanied by photographs, maps, drawings, or other pertinent information, as 

applicable, including a written statement of the applicant explaining the basis for the 

variance required and reasons therefor.  

4. Approval Authority. The General Manager or his/her designee will exercise 



approval authority and act upon any completed application after submittal and may 

approve, conditionally approve, or deny the variance.  The applicant requesting the 

variance will be promptly notified in writing of any action taken. The decision of the 

General Manager or his/her designee shall be final unless the applicant files a written 

appeal to the District Board of Directors within 10 days after the date of the decision.  

Unless specified otherwise at the time a variance is approved, the variance shall apply to 

the subject property only during the term of the applicable water conservation level 

condition.  

5. Required Findings for Variance. An application for a variance will be denied unless 

the approving authority finds, based on the information provided in the application, 

supporting documents, or such additional information as may be requested, and on water 

use information for the property as shown by the records of the District, all of the following:  

(a) That the variance does not constitute a grant of special privilege inconsistent 

with the limitations upon other District customers.  

(b) That because of special circumstances applicable to the property or its use, 

the strict application of this Section 12.01 would have a disproportionate 

impact on the property or use that exceeds the impacts upon District 

customers generally.  

(c) That the approval of such variance will not materially affect the ability of 

the District to effectuate the purposes of this Section 12.01 and will not be 

detrimental to the public interest.  

(d) That the condition or situation of the subject property or the intended use of 

the property for which the variance is sought is not common,  or general in 



nature. 

6. No relief shall be granted to any customer for any reason in the absence of a 

showing by the customer that the customer has achieved the maximum practical reduction 

in the customer’s water consumption.  

 
 
Section 12.02. Enforcement of District Water Conservation Standards and Regulations. 

 The following provisions apply to the enforcement of the permanent water conservation 

requirements and the water shortage level water conservation requirements in subsections C and 

D of Section 12.01.   

A. For single–family residential, commercial or other customers served by one (1) meter 

or two (2) meters where one is for inside use and other is for outside use, such as irrigation 

of landscaping, the following shall apply:  

1. For a customer’s first two violations of the permanent water restrictions or the water 

restrictions during a declared water shortage or emergency, the District will issue warnings.  

For each warning, the District first will make one attempt to contact the customer or other 

person at the premises of the observed violation and follow-up any such verbal warning 

with written confirmation of the violation.  If such contact is unsuccessful, the District will 

mail written notice of the violation to the customer.  If the warning was orally 

communicated, the customer will have 48 hours to correct the violation.  Otherwise, the 

customer will have 7 days from the date of the written notice to correct the violation. 

2. Upon the occurrence of three or more violations, the District will notify the 

customer in writing by mail of the violation.  The customer will have 7 days from the date 

of the notice to correct the violation.  If the violation is not corrected, a fine of $50 per day 



will be imposed and charged to the customer’s account until the earlier of: (i) the violation 

is corrected, or (ii) the District disconnects the customer’s irrigation meter or installs a flow 

restrictor pursuant to subsections 3 and 4 below.  

3. When at least four violations have been committed which concern or relate to the 

watering of landscaping or vegetation (including multiple violations of the same 

restriction) then the District, upon notice pursuant to subsection E below, may disconnect 

the customer’s irrigation meter if the customer’s landscaping or vegetation is separately 

metered.  If the landscaping or vegetation is not separately metered, then the District may 

install a flow restrictor on the customer’s meter in order to reduce water service for 

essential uses only (i.e., household or inside uses), unless the customer chooses to install 

separately metered water systems for inside and outside use in which event the outside 

water system only would be disconnected.  If the customer chooses to install separately 

metered systems, then the District may install the flow restrictor until the separate systems 

are operational to the District’s satisfaction.  

4. If there are at least four violations of the water restrictions of whatever nature, then 

the District, upon notice pursuant to subsection E below, may install a flow restrictor on 

the customer’s meter in order to reduce water service for essential uses only, and if the 

customer has a separate meter for irrigation of landscaping or vegetation, the District may 

disconnect that meter.   

5. In the event that service is disconnected or reduced pursuant to subsections A.3 or 

A.4 above, service shall not be restored and flow restrictors shall not be removed until the 

customer pays the District the sum of $100.00 per meter which is disconnected and $200.00 

per meter for which a flow restrictor is installed in order to reimburse the District for its 



costs in disconnecting or reducing service, and then restoring service, and a fine of $500.  

The District shall have 5 working days from the date of payment to restore service and/or 

remove the flow restrictors. Upon restoration of service, the customer will be subject to the 

provisions of this subsection A, except the customer will be considered to already have 

received 2 warnings.  

B. For multi-family residential customers (condominiums, duplexes, triplexes, 

apartments, trailer parks and others), and commercial and other customers with more than 

one meter or two meters where one meter is for inside use and the other is for outside use, 

such as irrigation or landscaping, the following shall apply: 

 1. Violations concerning or relating to common areas, landscaping or vegetation 

(a) For the first two violations of water restrictions by a customer or his/her 

agents or employees relating to or concerning common areas, landscaping 

or vegetation, the District will issue warnings.  For each warning, the 

District first will make one attempt to contact the customer or other person 

at the premises of the observed violation and follow-up any such verbal 

warning with written confirmation of the violation.  If such contact is 

unsuccessful, the District will mail written notice of the violation to the 

customer’s billing address.  If the warning was orally communicated, the 

customer will have 48 hours to correct the violation.  Otherwise, the 

customer will have 7 days from the date of the written notice to correct the 

violation. 

(b) Upon the occurrence of three or more violations, the District will notify the 

customer in writing by mail of the violation.  The customer will have 7 days 



from the date of the notice to correct the violation.  If the violation is not 

corrected, a fine of $50 per day will be imposed and charged to the 

customer’s account until the earlier of: (i) the violation is corrected, or (ii) 

the District disconnects the customer’s irrigation meter or installs a flow 

restrictor pursuant to subsection (c) below.  

(c) When at least four violations have been committed by a customer or his/her 

agents or employees, which concern or relate to common areas, landscaping 

or vegetation, then the District, upon notice pursuant to subsection E below, 

may disconnect all of the customer’s irrigation meters if the customer’s 

common areas, landscaping or vegetation are separately metered.  If the 

common areas, landscaping or vegetation are not separately metered, then 

the District may install flow restrictors on all of the customer’s meters in 

order to reduce water service for essential uses only (i.e., household or 

inside uses), unless the customer chooses to install separately metered water 

systems for inside and outside use in which event the outside water system 

only would be disconnected.  If the customer chooses to install separately 

metered systems, then the District may install flow restrictors until the 

separate systems are operational to the District’s satisfaction.  

2. Violations associated with dwelling units, businesses or other individual units 

(a) For the first two violations of water restrictions associated with a dwelling 

unit, business or other individual unit, the District will issue warnings to the 

occupants thereof, and the customer if different from the occupant.  For each 

warning, the District first will make one attempt to contact the customer or 



other person at the premises of the observed violation and follow-up any 

such verbal warning with written confirmation of the violation to the 

customer.  If such contact is unsuccessful, the District will mail written 

notice of the violation to the customer.  If the warning was orally 

communicated, the customer will have 48 hours to correct the violation.  

Otherwise, the customer will have 7 days from the date of the written notice 

to correct the violation. 

(b) Upon the occurrence of three or more violations, the District will notify the 

customer in writing by mail of the violation.  The customer will have 7 days 

from the date of the notice to correct the violation.  If the violation is not 

corrected, a fine of $50 per day will be imposed and charged to the 

customer’s account until the earlier of (i) the violation is corrected, or (ii) 

the District disconnects the customer’s irrigation meter or installs a flow 

restrictor pursuant to subsection (c) below. 

(c) When at least four violations of such water restrictions have been 

committed, the District, upon notice pursuant to subsection E below, may 

install a flow restrictor on the meter serving the dwelling unit, business or 

other individual unit in order to reduce water service for essential uses only.  

If the meter in question provides service to other dwelling units, businesses 

or other individual units, or to common areas, landscaping or other 

vegetation, then those affected thereby who are unrelated to the violations 

may elect to install separate meters.  However, the District may install the 



flow restrictor until the separate meters have been installed and are 

operational to the District’s satisfaction. 

3. Restoration of service and/or removal of flow restrictors 

In the event that service is disconnected and/or reduced pursuant to either 

subsections B.1. or B.2 above, the customer or other affected person may request 

reconnection and/or removal of the flow restrictor upon payment of the sum of $100.00 per 

meter which is disconnected and $200 per meter for which a flow restrictor is installed in 

order to reimburse the District for its costs in disconnecting or reducing service, and then 

restoring service, and upon payment of a fine of $500.  The District shall have 5 working 

days within which to restore service and/or remove the flow restrictor after a request 

therefor by the customer or other affected person and payment of the fine and costs to 

restore service.  Upon restoration of service, the customer will be subject to the provisions 

of this subsection B, except the customer will be considered to already have received two 

warnings.  

C. Fees and Fines 

In addition, to any other fees or costs imposed by this Section 12.02, there also shall be a 

$20 monthly fee imposed on each customer whose service has been reduced through the 

installation of a flow restrictor for each month or part thereof that the flow restrictor is in operation.  

The purpose of the above fees is to reimburse the District for its costs in administering and 

processing flow restrictors and in monitoring the customer’s water use and the proper operation of 

the flow restrictor.  The fees set forth in this subsection C shall be subject to the collection and 

enforcement provisions of Section 6.15 and Division VIII B of this Chapter 12.   



D. Appeals 

 1. Any person aggrieved relative to the enforcement of the District water conservation 

standards and regulations may submit a written appeal to the General Manager of the District 

within 10 days after the date of the enforcement action.  The appeal shall set forth the events and 

circumstances concerning the enforcement action, the nature of the enforcement action from which 

relief is sought, and the reasons for why the appeal should be granted.   

 2. Should the aggrieved person not be satisfied with the determination of the General 

Manager, he/she may appeal the decision of the General Manager to the Board of Directors within 

30 days after the date that the General Manager’s determination is made.  The General Manager 

shall then submit such appeal, together with his/her recommendations, to the District Board of 

Directors which shall forthwith study the matter, schedule a hearing within 90 days from the date 

of the appeal, accept evidence relative to the appeal, hear testimony and reasons for such appeal, 

and prepare a written decision summarizing the findings and ruling of the Board which shall be 

sent to the appellant within 30 days after its decision.   

 3. After a decision is reached by the Board of Directors, the appellant must bring any 

legal action against the District within the time limits set forth in Section 53069.4 of the 

Government Code, or as otherwise provided by law.   

E. Notice 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Chapter 12 of the District Code, any 

disconnection or reduction in service may be made after providing forty-eight (48) hours advance 

written notice thereof if such notice is personally served on the customer and violator, if different 

from the customer, and other affected person, or after providing one (1) week’s advance written 



notice thereof if such notice is mailed to the customer and violator, if different from the customer, 

and other affected person.  

The provisions of Section 3.08 of this Chapter 12 shall not apply to this Section 12.01.  

Written notice given by mail pursuant to this section shall be deposited in the United States Post 

Office Box for delivery by first class mail.  Registered or Certified mail is not required.  The 

customer shall be responsible for notifying the District to whom notices under this Section 12.02 

should be mailed if other than the customer.   

F. Accumulation of Violations 

Violations of water restrictions, whether violations of the permanent water conservation 

requirements in Section 12.01 C.2 or the restrictions imposed pursuant to Section 12.01 D during 

a threatened or existing drought or other water shortage, shall not accumulate from one year to the 

next year.   

G. Criminal Penalties 

In addition to the above administrative penalties and remedies, violators of mandatory 

water conservation requirements imposed by the District in response to the declaration of a Level 

1, 2, 3 or 4 Condition shall be subject to criminal penalties in accordance with California Water 

Code section 31029.   

SECTION FIVE.  INCONSISTENCY 

 To the extent that the terms and provisions of this Ordinance may be inconsistent or in 

conflict with the terms or conditions of any prior District ordinances, resolutions, rules or 

regulations governing the same subject, the terms of this Ordinance shall prevail with respect to 

the subject matter thereof and such inconsistent or conflicting provisions of prior ordinances, 

resolutions, rules or regulations are hereby repealed as of the effective date of this Ordinance.  



SECTION SIX.  INVALIDITY 

 If any provision of this Ordinance or application thereof to any person or circumstance is 

held invalid, no other provision of this Ordinance shall be affected thereby. 
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ORDINANCE NO. 09-03-15-14 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
OF THE MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT AMENDING DIVISION XII 

OF CHAPTER 12 OF THE DISTRICT CODE REGARDING WATER SHORTAGE 
CONDITIONS AND WATER CONSERVATION MEASURES 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Mammoth Community Water District 

as follows: 

SECTION ONE. RECITALS 

1. Article X, Section 2 of the California Constitution declares that the general welfare requires

that the water resources of the State be put to beneficial use, that waste or unreasonable use or

unreasonable method of use of water be prevented, and that conservation of water be fully

exercised with a view to the reasonable and beneficial use thereof.

2. On April 1, 2015, the Board of Directors of the Mammoth Community Water District

(“District”) enacted Ordinance No. 04-01-15-08 which amended Division XII of Chapter 12 of the

District Code for the purpose of amending and restating the provisions of the Code governing

water shortage conditions, water conservation measures, and enforcement of violations of District

water conservation measures.

3. The Governor has continued in effect his January 17, 2014 proclamation declaring a

drought state of emergency and asking that all water agencies immediately implement

conservation efforts to reduce urban water use by at least 20% compared to the 2013 water use,

and his April 25, 2014 executive order calling for specific actions to avoid water waste and to

conserve water.  On May 5, 2015, the State Water Resources Control Board adopted emergency

regulations imposing mandatory water conservation on all urban water suppliers, including a 24

percent reduction on the District.
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4. In 2015, no water at all is available from the District’s limited surface water storage 

capacity of 660 acre-feet in Lake Mary and groundwater wells are the only continuing supply 

available to the District.   

 

5. As a result of the continued drought, the District’s well water supplies have been severely 

constrained by lack of recharge from winter snows and rains, and District wells have experienced 

significantly reduced pumping and recharge capacity.  

 

6. In view of the continuing and unprecedented drought conditions affecting California in 

general and the Mammoth Lakes region in particular, it is imperative that the District continue to 

immediately enact prudent water demand management measures as required to avoid water 

shortages for remainder of the 2015 water year.  

 

7. In light of the foregoing facts, it is necessary for the District to amend its water conservation 

requirements to minimize the effects of the current and future water shortages within the Mammoth 

Lakes community.  Imposing such additional requirements is essential at this time to ensure a 

reliable minimum supply of water for the public health, safety, and welfare until such time as 

sufficient precipitation is received to ensure recharge of the District’s surface and groundwater 

supplies sufficient to reliably meet all 2015 water year and future water year demands. 

 

SECTION TWO. PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY 

 

This Ordinance amends the provisions of the District Code governing water shortage 

conditions, water conservation measures, and enforcement of violations of District water 

conservation measures to increase and to clarify existing requirements in order to ensure that the 

District maintains a reliable minimum supply of water for the public health, safety, and welfare.   

The authority for this Ordinance is found at California Water Code sections 31024, 31026, 31027, 

31028 and 31029, Government Code section 53069.4 and other applicable law. 

 

 

SECTION THREE. FINDINGS AND DECLARATION OF URGENCY 
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Based on the foregoing Recitals, which are incorporated herein and found to be true and 

correct, the Board of Directors of the District hereby finds and determines that because of the 

drought prevailing in the region, there is a continuing and increased threat of a severe water 

shortage condition in the Mammoth Lakes area which may significantly affect the availability of 

the District’s water supplies for at least the remainder of the 2015 water year, thereby necessitating 

the immediate imposition of additional and increased water conservation measures in order to help 

preserve and protect the health, safety and welfare of the District and its residents.     

 

SECTION FOUR. AMENDMENTS TO DIVISION XII OF CHAPTER 12 OF 

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT CODE 

 
A.  Subsections 12.01.D.1 through D.8 of Section 12.01 of Division XII of Chapter 12 of the 

District Code are hereby amended as follows: 

D. Threatened or Existing Water Supply Shortages – Water Level Conditions and 

Mandatory Reductions 

1. General 

There shall be four levels of water restrictions, which may be implemented after 

the District Board of Directors by resolution has declared the existence or threatened 

existence of a water shortage.  Whenever the Board has made such a declaration, and during 

the course of such threatened or existing water shortage, the Board by motion may 

implement any level of shortage as it deems necessary, and shall authorize the General 

Manager and District staff to enforce it.  Any level of restrictions so implemented by the 

Board shall remain in effect until the Board by motion determines otherwise.  

The four levels of water shortages and the approximate condition of the shortage 

are described below.  Measures to reduce water demand are targeted to the shortage 

condition and apply to potable and raw water uses.    



4 
 

 2. Level 1 Water Supply Shortage 

The Board of Directors by motion may declare a Level 1 water supply shortage 

condition ("Level 1 Condition") when there is a reasonable probability, due to a projected 

imbalance in available water supply and projected peak demand, that there will be a supply 

shortage and that a mandatory reduction in demand for each consumer of 10 percent below 

that consumer’s demand in the same month in calendar year 2013 is needed in order to 

ensure that sufficient supplies will be available to meet anticipated demands. Upon such 

declaration, the General Manager or his/her designee shall take the necessary actions to 

implement the mandatory Level 1 Condition conservation practices identified below in this 

subsection.   

  During the period of a declared Level 1 Condition, all water customers shall be 

required to comply with the permanent water conservation measures in subsection C and 

the following additional water conservation measures:  

(a) Irrigation of residential and commercial landscapes, except golf courses, 

public parks and school playing fields, shall not occur between 10:00 a.m. 

and 7:00 p.m.  Customers with a monthly Maximum Applied Water 

Allowance may not exceed 150% of the monthly allowance. 

(b) Repair or prevention of all water leaks shall be carried out upon discovery 

by the customer or within five days after notification from the District. 

(c) No hard surfaces including sidewalks, driveways, parking areas or decks 

may be washed or hosed down with water supplied through the District’s 

water system, unless required by health or safety requirements.  
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(d) After the District institutes a Level 1 Condition or higher water level 

condition in any year, there shall be no new lawn areas planted (whether by 

sod, seed, hydro mulch, or other means) which will require water from the 

District’s potable water system.   

(e) Upon notice to the District and approval by the General Manager or his/her 

designee, no more than five percent of existing turf area may be replaced or 

reseeded.   

(f) Water used for general construction and maintenance activities, including 

dust control, compaction and concrete curing, may come from one of two 

sources, potable or reclaimed.  Such customers have the option to utilize 

either a fire hydrant meter supplied by the District and pay for the water 

used or reclaimed water (at no cost) available from the District’s wastewater 

treatment plant.  The use of construction water will be subject to inspection 

and possible termination if any pooling, ponding, or other waste of water 

occurs.  

(g) Any other measures that the Board determines will promote the appropriate 

level of water use reductions under this water shortage level and that are 

specified in any motion or other action adopted by the Board. 

3. Level 2 Water Supply Shortage   

The Board of Directors by motion may declare a Level 2 water supply shortage 

condition ("Level 2 Condition") when there is a reasonable probability, due to a projected 

imbalance in available water supply and projected peak demand, that there will be a supply 

shortage and that a mandatory reduction in demand for each consumer of 20 percent below 
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that consumer’s demand in the same month in calendar year 2013 is required in order to 

ensure that sufficient supplies will be available to meet anticipated demands.  Upon the 

declaration of a Level 2 Condition, the General Manager or his/her designee shall take the 

necessary actions to notify the public and implement the mandatory Level 2 Condition 

conservation practices identified below in this subsection.   

During the period of a declared Level 2 Condition, all water customers shall be 

required to comply with all Level 1 Condition measures, as set forth above, and also shall 

comply with the following conservation measures:  

(a) Irrigation of residential and commercial landscapes, except golf courses, 

public parks and school playing fields, shall not occur between 9:00 a.m. 

and 8:00 p.m. Customers with a monthly Maximum Applied Water 

Allowance may not exceed 125% of the monthly allowance. 

(b) No turf areas may be replaced or reseeded. 

(c) Repair or prevention of all water leaks shall be carried out upon discovery 

by the customer or within 3 days after notification from the District.  

(d) Water from the District’s potable water system used for general 

construction and maintenance activities, including dust control, compaction 

and concrete curing, is not permitted.  Reclaimed water from the District’s 

wastewater treatment plant must be utilized for these purposes.  

(e) Any other measures that the Board determines will promote the appropriate 

level of water use reductions under this water shortage level and that are 

specified in any motion or other action adopted by the Board. 

4. Level 3 Water Supply Shortage  



7 
 

The Board of Directors by motion, may declare a Level 3 water supply shortage 

condition ("Level 3 Condition") when there is a reasonable probability, due to a projected 

imbalance in available water supply and projected peak demand, that there will be a supply 

shortage and that a mandatory reduction in demand for each consumer of 30 percent below 

that consumer’s demand in the same month in calendar year 2013 is required in order to 

ensure that sufficient supplies will be available to meet essential demands.  Upon 

declaration of a Level 3 Condition, the General Manager or his/her designee shall take the 

necessary actions to implement the mandatory Level 3 Condition conservation practices 

identified below in this subsection.  

During the period of a declared Level 3 Condition, all water customers shall comply 

with all Level 1 Condition and Level 2 Condition water conservation measures and also 

shall comply with the following additional conservation measures:  

(a) Irrigation of residential and commercial landscapes, except golf courses, 

public parks and school playing fields, shall not occur between 7:00 a.m. 

and 4:00 a.m.  Customers with odd addresses will be permitted to water only 

on Thursday and Sunday.  Customers with even addresses will be permitted 

to water only on Wednesday and Saturday.   Customers who do not have a 

numbered address will be notified by the District of their two watering days. 

Customers with a monthly Maximum Applied Water Allowance may not 

exceed 80% of the monthly allowance. 

(b) Filling or re-filling of ornamental ponds is prohibited, except to the extent 

needed to sustain plants or animals that have been actively managed within 

the water feature prior to the declaration of a Level 3 Condition.  
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(c) All water leaks, breaks or other plumbing malfunctions shall be repaired 

upon discovery by the customer or within forty-eight hours after notification 

by the District, with the exception of rental properties, which shall have up 

to seventy-two hours to repair interior unit leaks, in order to comply with 

State laws regarding the provision of notice to tenants.   

(d) Any other measures that the Board determines will promote the appropriate 

level of water use reductions under this water shortage level and that are 

specified in any motion or other action adopted by the Board. 

5. Level 4 Water Supply Shortage 

The Board of Directors may declare by motion a Level 4 water supply shortage 

condition (“Level 4 Condition") when there is a reasonable probability, due to a projected 

imbalance in available water supply and projected peak demand, that there will be a supply 

shortage and that a mandatory reduction in demand for each consumer of 50 percent below 

that consumer’s demand in the same month in calendar year 2013 is required in order to 

ensure that sufficient supplies will be available to meet essential demands.  Upon 

declaration of Level 4 Condition, the General Manager or his/her designee shall take all 

necessary actions to implement the mandatory Level 4 Condition conservation practices 

identified below in this subsection. 

During the period of a declared Level 4 Condition, all water customers shall be required to 

comply with all Level 1 Condition, Level 2 Condition and Level 3 Condition water 

conservation measures, and also shall comply with the following additional conservation 

measures: 

(a) All landscape irrigation, except  (1) the exemption for golf courses, public 
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parks, school playing fields, and landscape products of commercial growers 

and nurseries; and (2) the exemption allowing landscape watering with 

hand-held hose with shut-off nozzle Sunday, Wednesday, Thursday, and 

Saturday between 5 p.m. to 9 a.m., shall be prohibited.   

(b) All water leaks, breaks or other plumbing malfunctions shall be repaired

upon discovery by the customer or within twenty-four hours after

notification by the District, with the exception of rental properties, which

shall have up to seventy-two hours to repair interior unit leaks, in order to

comply with State laws regarding the provision of notice to tenants.

(c) Filling or refilling of residential pools and spas is prohibited.

(d) Any other measures that the Board determines will promote the appropriate

level of water use reductions under this water shortage level and that are

specified in any motion or other action adopted by the Board.

6. Golf Course, Public Park and School Playing Field Water Restrictions

During water shortage level conditions, golf courses, public parks and school

playing fields shall be subject to only the following water restrictions for irrigation; 

provided that golf courses, public parks and school playing fields utilizing recycled water 

for irrigation are exempt from this subsection 6: 

(a) At Level 1 water restrictions, the owners of golf courses, public parks and

school playing fields shall submit a water conservation plan to the District

that describes existing and planned methods for reducing water use by

mandatory reduction in demand for each consumer of 10 percent below that

consumer’s demand in the same month in calendar year 2013.  This water
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conservation plan shall be approved by the General Manager.  Golf Courses, 

public parks and school playing fields shall be subject to the Level 1 

irrigation water restrictions until such plan is approved.   

(b) At Level 2 water restrictions, the owners of golf courses, public parks and

school playing fields shall submit a water conservation plan to the District

that describes methods for reducing water use by mandatory reduction in

demand for each consumer of 20 percent below that consumer’s demand in

the same month in calendar year 2013.    This water conservation plan shall

be approved by the General Manager.  Golf courses, public parks and school

playing fields shall be subject to the Level 2 irrigation water restrictions

until such plan is approved.

(c) At Level 3 water restrictions, owners of golf courses, public parks and

school playing fields shall submit a water conservation plan to the District

that describes methods for reducing water use by mandatory reduction in

demand for each consumer of 30 percent below that consumer’s demand in

the same month in calendar year 2013. This water conservation plan shall

be approved by the General Manager.  Golf courses, public parks and school

playing fields shall be subject to the Level 3 irrigation water restrictions

until such plan is approved.

(d) At Level 4 water restrictions, owners of golf courses, public parks and

school playing fields shall submit a water conservation plan to the District

that describes methods for reducing water use by mandatory reduction in

demand for each consumer of 50 percent below that consumer’s demand in
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the same month in calendar year 2013. This water conservation plan shall 

be approved by the General Manager.  Golf courses, public parks and school 

playing fields shall be subject to the Level 4 irrigation water restrictions 

until such plan is approved.    

7. School and Town Playing Fields

Whenever the Board of Directors has implemented water shortage level conditions,

it may, if in the public interest, permit the irrigation of the Mammoth High School, the 

Mammoth Middle School and the Mammoth Elementary School playing fields and the 

Town’s Shady Rest Park on days and during times fixed by motion of the Board of 

Directors.  

8. Recycled Water

The water restrictions set forth in subsection D shall not apply to the use of recycled

water for any purpose. 

SECTION FIVE.  INCONSISTENCY 

To the extent that the terms and provisions of this Ordinance may be inconsistent or in 

conflict with the terms or conditions of any prior District ordinances, resolutions, rules or 

regulations governing the same subject, the terms of this Ordinance shall prevail with respect to 

the subject matter thereof and such inconsistent or conflicting provisions of prior ordinances, 

resolutions, rules or regulations are hereby repealed as of the effective date of this Ordinance.  

SECTION SIX.  INVALIDITY 

If any provision of this Ordinance or application thereof to any person or circumstance is 

held invalid, no other provision of this Ordinance shall be affected thereby. 
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SECTION FIVE.  INCONSISTENCY 

To the extent that the terms and provisions of this Ordinance may be inconsistent or in 

conflict with the terms or conditions of any prior District ordinances, resolutions, rules or 

regulations governing the same subject, the terms of this Ordinance shall prevail with respect to 

the subject matter thereof and such inconsistent or conflicting provisions of prior ordinances, 

resolutions, rules or regulations are hereby repealed as of the effective date of this Ordinance.  

SECTION SIX.  INVALIDITY 

If any provision of this Ordinance or application thereof to any person or circumstance is 

held invalid, no other provision of this Ordinance shall be affected thereby. 

SECTION SEVEN. PUBLICATION 

The District General Manager is directed to publish a summary of this Ordinance once, 

with the names of the members voting for and against the Ordinance, in a newspaper published 

within the District within 15 days after the adoption of this Ordinance.     

SECTION EIGHT. EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption pursuant to California Water Code section 

31027. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Mammoth Community Water District 

at a meeting on the 3rd day of September, 2015, on the following roll call vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT 
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By: ______________________________________ 
President, Board of Directors 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Directors 

CERTIFICATE 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 

09-03-15-14, duly and regularly adopted by the Board of Directors of MAMMOTH

COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT, County of Mono, on the 3rd day of September, 2015. 

_______________________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Directors 



MCWD Threatened or Existing Water Supply Shortages – Water Level Conditions and Mandatory Reductions 

Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4 

Target reduction goal 10% 20% 30% Up to 50% 

Hours/Day of Week of allowed 
irrigation (except golf courses, public 
parks and school playing fields)  

After 7 pm to 10 am. 
Odd addresses: Tues, Thurs, Sun 
Even addresses: Mon, Wed, Sat 

After 8 pm to 9 am. 
Days of week: same as permanent 

After 10 pm to 9 am.4 am to 7 am 
Odd addresses: Thurs and Sun 
Even addresses: Wed and Sat 

All irrigation except golf courses, 
public parks and school playing 
fields is prohibited. 

Exemption from hours/days: landscape 
watering with hand-held hose with 
shut-off nozzle  

Exemption allows watering Sun, 
Mon, Tues, Wed, Thurs, and 
Saturday between 5pm to 10 am 

Same as Level 1. Exemption allows watering Sun, 
Wed, Thurs, and Sat between 
5pm to 9 am. 

Exemption allows hand watering 
Sun, Wed, Thurs, and Sat 
between 5 pm to 9 am.Exemption 
does not apply. 

Repair of leaks after notification by 
MCWD or discovery by customer 

Within 5 days. Within 3 days. Within 48 hours, rental units have 
72 hours to correct. 

Within 24 hours, rental units have 
72 hours to correct. 

Water for construction May use potable or reclaimed. Source limited to recycled. Same as Level 2. Same as Level 2. 

Golf course, public park and school 
playing fields 

Owners shall submit a water 
conservation plan to reduce 
water by up to 10 percent. Until 
plan is approved, these fields are 
subject to Level 1 restrictions 
unless reclaimed water is used for 
irrigation. 

Owners shall submit a water 
conservation plan to reduce 
water by up to 20 percent. Until 
plan is approved, these fields are 
subject to Level 2 restrictions 
unless reclaimed water is used for 
irrigation. 

Owners shall submit a water 
conservation plan to reduce 
water by up to 30 percent. Until 
plan is approved, these fields are 
subject to Level 3 restrictions 
unless reclaimed water is used for 
irrigation. 

Owners shall submit a water 
conservation plan to reduce 
water by up to 50 percent. Until 
plan is approved, these fields are 
subject to Level 4 restrictions 
unless reclaimed water is used for 
irrigation. 

Ornamental ponds State restriction as of July 2014: 
Potable water in a fountain or 
decorative water feature that is 
not part of a recirculating system 
is prohibited. 

Under state restrictions. MCWD regulations: No refilling of 
ornamental ponds. Requests for 
exemptions may be made to 
MCWD.  

Same as Level 3 

Pools and spas No overfilling of pools and spas 
(perm requirement).  

Same as permanent. Same as permanent. No filling or refilling of residential 
pools and spas. 

Vehicle washing Must use a shut-off nozzle on 
hose. 

Same as Level 1. Vehicle washing, only allowed at 
commercial car washing 
facilities.Same as Level 1  

Same as Level 3. 

New lawns No new lawns using potable 
water. 

Same as Level 1. Same as Level 1. Same as Level 1. 

Reseeding/replacing turf No more than 5% of turf may be 
rehabilitated. Must provide notice 
to the MCWD and receive 
approval. 

No turf areas may be replaced or 
reseeded.  

Same as Level 2. Same as Level 2. 



Washing down hard surfaces Not allowed unless for health and 
safety requirements. 

Same as Level 1 Same as Level 1 Same as Level 1. 

Irrigation account reductions linked to 
MAWA 

Monthly consumption may not 
exceed 150% of MAWA. 

Monthly consumption may not 
exceed 125% of MAWA. 

Monthly consumption may not 
exceed 10080% of MAWA. 

No landscape irrigation. Irrigation 
of parks, school playing fields and 
golf courses subject to District 
approved plans demonstrating 
50% reduction of irrigation 
demand. 
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AGENDA ITEM

Subject:   Discussion and Consideration of Motion Conforming District Remaining at Level 3 Water Supply 
Shortage , With Changes Enacted by Ordinance No. 09-03-15-14 

Information Provided By:   Pat Hayes, General Manager 

Background 

Due to the continuing drought conditions, the Board approved Resolution 04-01-15-08 declaring a water 
shortage, and implemented Level 3 restrictions on April 1, 2015.   Subsequently, conservation measures have 
been highly effective in reducing water demand over the 2013 year.  In June, strong water conservation by 
our customers resulted in a reduction of 31%, in July, 2015, a 38% reduction and in August 2015, a 29%.  The 
State Water Resources Control Board has cited the District’s water conservation to be in the very top levels 
of conservation state-wide.  Monthly water supply updates provided to the Board indicated that we had 
sufficient resources to meet the lowered demand.   

Discussion  
On the water supply side, we are completely reliant on our nine wells.  Water levels in Wells 1, 6 and 10, 
have dropped.  Well 18 is in need of rehabilitation to restore capacity, and production is very limited.  Well 1 
can only be run about 5 hours per day.  Last Wednesday, Well 15 had a PRV failure, knocking it offline.  While 
it was being repaired with a used part off the shelf, Well 10 bore the brunt of the load.  During this time, 
water levels dropped to the low level shutoff and the well shutdown.  At that point the only alternative to 
meet demand would have been to tap our emergency storage in Lake Mary.  This indicated that our supplies 
are not only very limited, but that the contingencies to overcome failures are critically stretched.   

While the NOAA forecast for the coming winter is encouraging, we cannot guarantee when our very limited 
water resources will be replenished.  Therefore it is prudent to stretch our supplies by limiting demand 
wherever possible.  

Staff efforts and customer response to water conservation have been highly successful in getting the District 
through the summer irrigation months.  The current Level restrictions limit irrigation to two days per week 
and between the times of 10 pm and 9 am.  Customers have been asked to reduce consumption 30% over 
the same month’s use in 2013.  Most customers have heeded the call for conservation.  However, there are 
some outliers who are using large amounts of water for irrigation and watering for the entire 11 hour period 
allowed in the Ordinance.  While in compliance with the hours of watering, they are using large amounts of 
water far in excess of what is needed to keep landscaping alive.  

Now that we are into September the days are getting shorter, temperatures are cooling off and the need for 
irrigation is dropping.   
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There is an immediate need to conserve, and to accomplish that, Ordinance 09-03-15-14 was written to 
eliminate some loopholes.  Ordinance 09-03-15-14 addressed this by reducing the watering hours for Level 3 
from 11 hours per day to 3 hours per day and limits the hours to 4 am to 7 am.  Additionally MAWA users are 
being dropped from 100% allocation to 80% allocation.  Language was also added to clean up some terms 
and time frames, and make conservation mandatory for every customer. 

Conclusion 

Our water supplies are extremely tight, water is still being wasted unnecessarily on excessive irrigation and 
the Ordinance requires additional language limiting watering times to 3 hours per day in order to stretch our 
water resource.  Continuing with Level 3 Water Supply Shortage with changes enacted by Ordinance No. 09-
03-15-14 will close loopholes and limit wasting of water for the remainder of this year’s irrigation period.  

Fiscal Impact  
The additional conservation measures are not expected to have a significant effect on operating revenue. 

Requested Action 

Staff recommends the Board consider motion conforming District remaining at Level 3 Water Supply 
Shortage, with changes enacted by Ordinance No. 09-03-15-14. 
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MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO:  PATRICK HAYES, GENERAL MANAGER 
 
FROM: JOSH HOROWITZ AND KATRINA GONZALES 
 
DATE: SEPTEMBER 1, 2015 
 
RE: FILLING VACANCY ON MAMMOTH COMMUNITY WATER 

DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS BY APPOINTMENT 
 
This memorandum sets forth the procedure for filling a seat on the Mammoth Community Water 
District (“District”) Board of Directors by appointment because of the vacancy created by Director 
Gordon Alper’s death.  We understand that the Board would prefer to appoint a new Director to 
fill the vacancy, rather than to call an election to fill the seat. 
 
Water Code section 30504 (of the County Water District Law) provides that “all vacancies in the 
office of director shall be filled pursuant to [s]ection 1780 of the Government Code.”  The steps 
provided by Government Code section 1780 to fill Board vacancies by appointment are outlined 
below: 
  

1. The District must notify the Mono County Registrar of Voters of the vacancy no later than 
15 days following either the date on which the District Board is notified of the vacancy or 
the effective date of the vacancy, whichever is later.  Our understanding is that, although 
Director Alper passed away on August 22, 2015, the District was not officially informed 
of his passing until August 24, 2015.  Accordingly, the District has until Tuesday, 
September 8, 2015, to notify the county elections official of the vacancy. 
 

2. The District must post a notice of the vacancy in three or more conspicuous places within 
the District at least 15 days before the appointment is made.  The notice of vacancy may 
(but is not required to) invite qualified applicants for the position.  In order to be qualified 
to serve on the Board, a person must be a voter of the District.  (Water Code § 30500.)   
 

3. An appointment to fill the vacancy must be made within a period of 60 days after the date 
on which the District Board was notified of the vacancy or the effective date of the vacancy, 
whichever is later. 
 

4. The District must notify the Mono County Registrar of Voters of the appointment no later 
than 15 days after the Board makes an appointment. 
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The person appointed to fill the vacancy holds office until the next general District election that is 
scheduled 130 or more days after the date the Mono County Registrar of Voters is notified of the 
vacancy, and thereafter until the person elected at that election to fill the vacancy has been 
qualified.  Our understanding is that the District’s next general election is in November 2016.  
Thus, Director Alper’s appointed successor will hold office until shortly after the November 2016 
election, when the person who is elected to fill the seat being held by the appointee is qualified.  If 
the appointee would like to continue serving on the Board, then he or she must file for candidacy 
and be elected to his or her seat in the November 2016 election.  
 
Other than the above requirements, there is no statutory or common law authority that specifies 
procedures or requirements for the Director appointment process.   
 
As soon as possible after the Board determines the selection criteria and procedures for appointing 
a successor Director, and as far in advance as possible of the 60-day deadline for appointing a new 
Director, the District should post the notices of vacancy.  The notice should describe the 
qualifications for office and candidate selection, the Board’s chosen application and selection 
procedures, the deadline for submitting applications to the Board or special committee, and the 
date of the meeting at which the Board will make the final selection of the successor Director. 
 
After the District Board appoints a new Director, he or she must file a Form 700 Assuming Office 
Statement within 30 days of being appointed to the Board.  In addition, within 10 days after making 
the appointment, the District must file an updated Statement of Facts, Roster of Public Agencies 
form with the Secretary of State’s office and the Mono County Clerk. (Government Code § 53051.) 
This form is available at bpd.cdn.sos.ca.gov/sf/forms/np-sf-405.pdf.  
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